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OUR
VISION To drive, to excel, 

and to participate in 
all industry-related 
businesses with 
passion, focus and 
professionalism.

Dedicated to deliver 
uncompromising 
products and services 
par excellence in every 
endeavor and task with 
the utmost integrity and 
full accountability.

OUR CORE VALUES

SUSTAINABILITY

TRANSPARENCY

ACCOUNTABILITY

RESPONSIVENESS

Every action undertaken should be environmentally, economically and 
socially sustainable so as to ensure the continuity and preservation of our 
Group, our integrated community, business partners and stakeholders.

We strive to upkeep the levels of professionalism and the principals of 
transparency in all matters pertaining to our professional conduct and 

business activities.

Our Group shall be accountable in every way towards our many endeavors in 
all aspects of our professional conduct in the marketplace especially towards 

the setting, executing and achieving of our goals and objectives.

Upon the trust granted to us by our stakeholders, shareholders, clients, 
customers and colleagues, we strive to uphold the practice of responding and 

reacting in a timely and prompt manner in every endeavor we undertake.

OUR
MISSION

OUR VISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

100%
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- Fajar Maritime and Logistics Sdn. Bhd. (“FML”):  

(60% owned by SPM)
Victoria STS (Labuan) Sdn. Bhd. : (“Victoria”)  
(70% owned by FML)

 Victoria 1 Limited : (100% owned by Victoria)
 Victoria 2 Limited : (100% owned by Victoria)

- Megah Port Management Sdn. Bhd.:  
(51% owned by SPM)

Incorporated in Labuan

TMD Straits Ltd.
TMD Sturgeon Ltd.
Pan Management Services Ltd.

90% Sinar Maju Logistik Sdn. Bhd. (“SML”)
- Sinar Maju Marin Sdn. Bhd : (100% owned by SML)
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Incorporated in Labuan

(100% owned by TMD)
- Cavalla Asia Ltd. 
- Dolphin Asia Ltd. 
- Escolar Asia Ltd. 

- Phoenix Asia Ltd. 
- Oscar Asia Ltd.  
- S3 Asia Ltd. 

67%

Straits Marine Fuels & Energy Sdn. Bhd. (“SMF”) 

Incorporated in Labuan 

(100% owned by SMF)
- SMF Begonia Ltd. 
- SMF Ixora Ltd. 
- SMF Omura Ltd. 
- SMF Eden Maritime Ltd. 
- SMF Cero Ltd.

(51% owned by SMF)
- SMF Beluga Ltd.
- Sierra Pioneer Marine Ltd.
- Katsu Pioneer Marine Ltd.

51%
Selatan Bunker (M) Sdn. Bhd.
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Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

Banle International Group Limited (“BIG”)
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Banle Energy International Limited (“Banle”): (100% owned by BIG)
- Reliance (China) Limited: (100% owned by Banle)

*   in the process of striking off



Dear shareholders, on behalf of the Board of Directors 
(“Board”) and the Management, it is my great pleasure to 
present the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 
of Straits Energy Resources Berhad (formerly known as 
Straits Inter Logistics Berhad) [“Straits” or “the Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (“the Group” or “Straits Group”) for the 

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,“

“
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The FYE 2021 was indeed a challenging year for the Group as the third COVID-19 wave began on 8 
September 2020. The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has halted both global and domestic economic 
activities. The nation had undertaken various measures to curb the pandemic, including different stages of 
Movement Control Order (“MCO”) to restrict the physical mobility of people and movement of goods and 
services, which in turn impacted the businesses and economies as a whole.

Economic Landscape

The Bank Negara Malaysia projected the year 2022 to be a turning point for the global economy, from 
a deep recession that originated from a global COVID-19 pandemic. For Malaysia, Bank Negara Malaysia 
(“BNM”) has projected Malaysia’s economy to grow by between 5.3% and 6.3% in 2022. This is underpinned 
by several factors including continued expansion in external demand, full upliftment of containment 
measures, reopening of international borders, and further improvement in labour market conditions.

Although Malaysia has successfully contained the pandemic and the economy is slowly picking up thus 
far, the extent of economic recovery would depend on when the pandemic can be controlled, given its 
current resurgence in certain major countries. For that, Malaysia remains vigilant over future waves of the 
disease.

Perpetuating Health & Safety 

The Board and Management has prioritised employee health and safety above all else during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The Group adopted proactive and rigorous measures to ensure a healthy workplace 
environment through stringent Standard Operating Procedures (“SOPs”) that comply with Government 
directives.



The capacity of our employee to respond quickly to changing situations and their ability to adapt and 
subsequently implement the best possible measures, prioritising business continuity, have been crucial 
contributors towards maintaining our business resilience.

On the bright side, the COVID-19 pandemic has provided a unique opportunity to rethink the kind of 
future we want so we can plan on how to transform the way we live and work. The pandemic has brought 
opportunities for many countries and change the way how businesses respond differently, reimagine new 
scenarios, and reset strategies to face the challenges ahead.

With the rapidly evolving situation surrounding the pandemic, it is crucial for businesses to remain agile 

Overall Performance

However, amidst this dark and gloomy year, there were some positive news as the Company  had 
recorded a better performance for the FYE 2021 despite the continuous challenges posed by the COVID-19 
pandemic

million in FYE 2020 representing an increase of 5% due to higher revenue of RM1.32 billion in FYE 2021 
against RM675.3 million in FYE 2020.  

The increase was substantially contributed by the oil trading & bunkering services segment which had 

the maritime industry and rising global oil prices.

able to continue operating but concurrently complying with the SOPs to ensure the safety and wellness 
of employees and also to ensure the smooth and continuous growth and execution of its expansion 
programs. Nonetheless, the Board and Management of the Company are closely monitoring the impact of 
this pandemic on Group’s result from time to time and to ensure appropriate risk mitigation measures are 
undertaken to preserve value and protect shareholders’ interests.

The COVID-19 pandemic had also thrust the concept of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) 
into the spotlight as companies worldwide realise the need to adopt more sustainable practices to avoid 

In Malaysia, there is growing acceptance and acknowledgement by industry leaders of the need for 
stronger ESG adoption.

We will continue strengthening our business portfolios to better serve our customers’ needs by placing 
focus on ensuring smooth operations and improving coordination and long-term business relationships 
with our key customers.

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
cont’d
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
cont’d

Business Outlook in 2022

In our expanding the Group’s port operation and facility management services, Straits had also acquired 
a 90% equity interest in Sinar Maju Logistik Sdn Bhd which will allow the Group to offer a broader range 
of related services within the port operation, logistics and transportation sector, provide additional value 
to clients and enhance the revenue and earnings of Straits Group moving forward. This acquisition is 
expected to provide an additional income stream to Straits Group.

Straits intends to drive the digital transformation of the Oil and Gas industry by enhancing the usage of 
automation, surveillance, remote operations and big data analytics through the Internet of Things (“IoT”) 
to achieve better performance and productivity. Straits is also exploring and tapping the huge business 

To realise the above objective, the Company had on 8 December 2021 acquired Straits Technology 
Solutions Sdn Bhd and Straits CommNet Solutions Sdn Bhd to participate in the vast business 

oil and gas industry through the Smart Technologies and IoT in Malaysia and regionally.

A Note of Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my sincere appreciation to Straits’ management team and 
employees for their commitment and excellent execution of strategic plans in ensuring the Company’s 
business stability and sustainability in the years to come. 

This is especially true as the team has demonstrated their unwavering commitment to deliver tangible 
project progress despite the setbacks and challenges posed by the pandemic and the resulting MCO.

bankers and business partners for their steadfast patronage and support. 

Last but not least, I would like to express my deepest appreciation to my fellow Board members for their 
wise counsel and keen involvement in the various Board Committees in 2021. 

Nevertheless, let’s stay vigilant and mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 outbreak whilst seeking to soar to 
greater heights in year 2022. Thank you for your continuous support and interest in Straits. 

Please stay safe and stay healthy.

Thank you.

Y.A.M DATO’ SERI TENGKU BAHARUDDIN
IBNI AL-MARHUM SULTAN MAHMUD AL-MUKTAFI BILLAH SHAH
Chairman, Non-Independent Non-Executive
22 April 2022
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Dear Shareholders,

It is with great pleasure that I am presenting to you this Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD & 

profoundly by the manifestation and resurgence of worldwide COVID-19 pandemic (“Pandemic”) 
phenomenon. Amidst the general concerns about the impact of Pandemic on businesses, we take this 
opportunity to address those concerns, discuss the past performance of the Group, and also share the 
strategies and actions the Group had engaged to brave these global challenges head on.

Movement restrictions, which were implemented to curtail the virus spread were gradually relaxed once 
the infectivity rates dipped. However, the resultant freer movement had caused a resurgence in infection 
numbers, leading to a re-tightening of the restrictions. This oscillation between curtailed and freer 
movement caused widespread disruptions to businesses and the overall growth trajectory of the global 
economic recovery.

The global coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and its Delta and Omicron variants pandemic continue to have a deep 
economic impact on our country and markets around the world. It has tested the resilience of millions of 
lives and livelihoods, as well as healthcare systems and economies in ways we could never have imagined. 

initiatives such as the Pakej Pelindungan Rakyat dan Pemulihan Ekonomi (“PEMULIH”) and the National 

In spite of this challenging situation, Straits Energy Resources Berhad (formerly known as Straits 
Inter Logistics Berhad) and its subsidiaries (“Straits Group” or “the Group”) have achieved a healthy 

stakeholders and to deliver service excellence at all times. 

Straits has always embraced change as a constant in growth and the transformation journey the Group 
has laid out remains the foundation on which we are proud to pivot our performance for both our top-line 

In the year under review, the Group focused on taking care of the welfare of our employees, expanding 

long-term growth.

The Group’s business has been segregated into the following core business segments:

1) Investment Holding

 Investment in shares and provision of management services

2) Oil Trading & Bunkering Services

 This involves the provision of refueling marine gas oil and marine fuel oil through vessels to other 
ships and ocean faring vessels such as container vessels, cargo vessels and oil tankers. In essence, oil 
bunkering services entail the offering of marine logistics and marine supports services to companies 

3) Inland Transportation & Logistics

 This involves the provision of transportation services by land, mainly through tankers, trucks and/or 
lorries.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
cont’d

Ship Management Services

 This involves the provision of the vessel and marine management services.

5) Port Management

 This involves the provision of Labuan Port management services.

6) Ship-to-Ship (“STS”) Operations

 This involves the provision of STS operations.

OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the f inancial year, the Oil Trading & Bunkering Services segment remained as the main 
contributor for the Group and they were able to enhance their revenue despite the challenges faced due 
to COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group achieved a total revenue of RM1.32 billion for the FY 31 December 2021 (“FY 2021”) as compared 
to RM675.32 million for the FY 31 December 2020 (“FY 2020”). The increase was substantially contributed 
by the Oil Trading & Bunkering Services segment which had expanded market coverage into Port Klang, 

and upward trending in Means of Platts Singapore (“MOPS”) price. There was also a huge spike in LSFO 
demand during the festive period in the last quarter of 2021.

Oil Trading and Bunkering Services segment contributed more than 98% to the Group’s revenue.

Revenue generated from Inland Transportation had also improved as the construction industry picked up 
on the back of the Malaysian economy recovering from the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Port Management segment also recorded an increase in revenue to RM12.00 million in FY 2021 as 
compared to RM9.60 million in FY 2020 partly due to full year operation in FY 2021 as compared to 9 
months operation in FY 2020.

The revenue recorded from the performance of Ship Management Services division also improved more 
than 90% from RM0.55 million in FY 2020 to RM1.06 million in FY 2021 mainly attributable to the division 
expanding its business to external parties.

Management Services segment, an increase in PBT of 275% by Port Management segment and reduced 
losses of RM0.66 million by its Inland Transportation segment.

incurred by the STS operations.

million recorded in FY 2020.

Funds increased to RM130.87 million from RM113.70 million in FY 2020. The Group Total Assets continued 
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BUSINESS PERFROMANCE REVIEW 

Oil Trading and Bunkering Services

In line with the Group’s business strategy to further expand its bunkering services and supply of marine 
fuel oil (“MFO”), Straits had on 15 October 2021, through its 51% indirect-owned subsidiary, SMF Beluga Ltd, 
entered into a Bareboat Charter Hire Agreement to acquire a vessel, namely M.T. Empower for a purchase 
consideration of USD3.50 million.

Since July 2021, Straits through its 70% owned subsidiary, Tumpuan Megah Development Sdn Bhd 
(“TMD”), has collaborated with Petronas Dagangan Berhad (“PDB”) to provide MFO to vessels within all 

strategic companies together for collaboration on provision of MFO to the many vessels in Malaysian 
waters.

The venture is synergistic and value-adding to both parties as through Straits’ wide established network 

container liners within the ports of Malaysia. With this tie up, PDB’s customers will be able to enjoy highly 

operating procedures.

Straits is very proud to be given the opportunity by an established and reputable company like PDB to 
work with them to further grow and tap the vast marine fuel oil market in Malaysia. This initiative will 
allow further business expansion for both parties and to enhance users’ experience.

Tanjung Pelepas Port, Johor Bahru Port, Kuantan Port, Kemaman Port, Kuala Terenganu Port and Labuan 

Straits is also very thankful and proud to be given the opportunity by PetroVietnam Technical Services 
Corporation (“PTSC”) to enter into a contract with them for the supply of diesel for the PM3-CAA project 
for a period of about 3.5 years from December 2021 to June 2025. 

its footprint throughout the region and this award is a recognition of Straits brand name in delivering 

and safe fuel delivery services through Straits comprehensive network, infrastructure and tight operating 
procedures. 

PTSC is a member of the Vietnam National Oil and Gas Group (“PetroVietnam”) and has established 
itself as a multi-sector corporation and leader in providing oil and gas technical services in and outside 
Vietnam. 

Inland Transportation and Logistics Services

Government, it was also one of the industries that was severely and negatively impacted by the spillover 
effect from the global pandemic on the global and local supply chain.

Our trucking business operated under highly disruptive environment in FY 2021 due to the COVID-19 
global Pandemic which led to various interruptions and disruptions to various industries and economies, 
both locally and globally, with stringent measures to curb the spread of the outbreak. 

Management hopes that this will improve further in 2022 taking into consideration that Malaysia has 
considered COVID-19 as endemic starting 1 April 2022. Furthermore, the construction industry is also 
picking up on the back of the Malaysian economy recovering from the COVID-19 Pandemic.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
cont’d
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BUSINESS PERFROMANCE REVIEW  (cont’d)

Inland Transportation and Logistics Services  (cont’d)

The economic environment is slowly but surely turning in our favor, with both the domestic and 
international economic and social sectors gradually reopening in line with the rising vaccination rate.

revenue. 

Port Operation & Facility Management Services

Straits’ indirect subsidiary i.e. Megah Port Management Sdn Bhd (“MPM”) had commenced Port 
Management Services at Labuan Port in April 2020.

The Port Management involves the provision of services, which include, but are not limited to, container 
operations, breakbulk (warehouse/container freight station/open yard), berthing and mooring, harbor tug 
services, stevedoring, bunkering, ship chandler to container and conventional vessels such as bulk carrier, 

10 meters and can accommodate a deadweight tonnage of 16,000.

protecting our country against the entry of the pandemic via our seaways.

During the COVID-19 Pandemic, ports had to adjust to the reality of lower volumes, worker shortages, the 
implementation of occupational health and safety measures for dockers and shore personnel and the 

The challenges we faced included a slowdown in cargo throughput, incurring additional costs to ensure 

our services going amid ongoing supply chain disruptions.

The container and cargo volume managed by MPM was 15,551 teus and 108,131 MT respectively, from 
January 2021 to December 2021. 

management industry.

capital to cost management. Our focus is on what is right before us - to move forward and to see the 
Group achieve greater heights of success.

MPM is currently upgrading its infrastructure and facilities to cater for more vessels as well as to meet the 
growing market demand following the recovery. This will allow the port to improve its handling capability.

system. Departments reporting protocols have also been enhanced in order to improve oversight and 
management.

Moving forward, the Group is bracing itself towards having to operate under more trying conditions. 
Nevertheless, we are convinced that the seeds we have sown, which include investing in the right people 

shareholders at large.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
cont’d
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BUSINESS PERFROMANCE REVIEW  (cont’d)

Ship Management Services

The performance of the Ship Management Services division of the Group shown more than 90% 
increment in its revenue for FY 2021 mainly due to the increase in the number of external party customers. 

The services performed by this division is to ensure the vessels are well maintained and the cost of 
maintenance and management is kept at a very competitive level. Its indirect subsidiary named Straits 
Maritime Services Pte Ltd is providing the same services to other vessel owners not within the Group.

STS Operations

The Group via its indirect subsidiary, Victoria STS (Labuan) Sdn Bhd (“Victoria”) had on 12 July 2021 received 
a letter of approval from Marine Department Malaysia for the development of STS Energy Transhipment 
Hub to provide and carry out liquid cargo transfer activities. 

The Group is looking to widen its business coverage into the STS operations and is currently mobilising its 
resources and infrastructure in preparation to commence operation in second quarter of 2022.

The development of the STS Energy Transhipment Hub includes setting up the key facilities and equipment 
such as tugboats, pneumatic fenders, LNG cryogenic equipment and single point mooring system.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The Malaysian Government projects a GDP growth of between 5.5% and 6.5% in 2022, predicated upon the 
reopening of economic and social sectors domestically and globally. The Group takes cautionary approach 

improvement of consumer sentiments, and developments surrounding the COVID-19 Pandemic.

We expect a stronger year ahead for our company, supported by higher growth in the Malaysian economy 

The Group will continue to expand its oil trading and bunkering business by increasing its deliverable 

well as broadening its geographical coverage.

comprehensive infrastructure and widened its customer base and this STS hub will kickstart Straits’ foray 
into the Sustainable and Alternative Energy space. With this project as a start, Straits aims to be a major 
player in the Sustainable and Alternative Energy industry in addition to its current fuel bunkering and port 
operation business.

This STS hub will be a new local economic driver with huge and substantial spillover effect to the local 
maritime services as well as employment opportunities for both skilled and semi-skilled labor. It will also 
be a catalyst to other related business in the Malaysia maritime sector.

As we continue to remind ourselves that the pandemic is still ongoing, we will constantly put in place the 
necessary precautions at all our operations to help prevent the spread of the virus.

Acquisition

The Group had on 3 March 2021 completed the Proposed Acquisition of additional 15% equity interest in TMD. 
Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, TMD has now become a 70%-owned subsidiary of Straits.

The Group had on 25 October 2021 announced the Proposed Acquisition of 90% equity interest in Sinar 
Maju Logistik Sdn Bhd (“Sinar Maju”). For Shareholders’ information, the Proposed Acquisition was 
completed on 1 April 2022 and Sinar Maju is now a 90% owned subsidiary of Straits.

Services, which will allow the Group to offer a broader range of relates services within the port operation, 
logistics and transportation sector to provide additional value to clients and enhance the revenue and 
earnings of Straits Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
cont’d
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS  (cont’d)

New Business Opportunities

Straits, via its 70% indirect-owned subsidiary, Straits CommNet Solutions Sdn Bhd (“SCS”) had in 
November 2021 entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Baicells Technologies Co., Ltd 
(“Baicells Technologies”) to collaborate and drive the growing wireless network communication business 

through Smart Technologies and Internet of Things (“IoT”) in Malaysia and regionally. 

vital roles. The deployment of the nationwide next-generation wireless cellular technology is expected 

5G, private networks will power innovation in areas such as automation, robotics, remote control across 
various industries. SCS will look into the digital transformation for Straits Group businesses and to ride on 
this technology wave in both the private enterprise and public sector.

Business Risks

There are still risks and uncertainties caused by the development of new COVID-19 variants. The eventual 

The Board is overseeing the matters of risk through the Board Risk & Compliance Committee that is 
supported by the Risk Management Committee and a team of external and internal auditors. 

Details on the Group’s risk management are disclosed in the Statement of Risk Management and Internal 
Control (“SORMIC”) provided in this annual report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I would also wish to express my deepest gratitude to the Board of Directors, for their stewardship and 
guidance.

A big thank you to the regulatory authorities and all our business associates, shareholders, banking and 

Having weathered the diff icult market conditions of a handicapped economy brought on by the 
pandemic, the Group has come out stronger and tougher, bearing the battle scars of a harsh environment 
yet upholding our reputation as the largest licensed bunker operator in Malaysia.

To the Management team and entire workforce, let us rise to the challenges ahead as we scale new 
heights. Thank you for your contributions to the Group.

Moving forward in 2022 and onwards, while Malaysia goes through a recovery period, I would like to 
remind everyone to continue complying with the Ministry of Health’s SOPs and doing everything in our 
power to stop the spread of the virus.

Thank you.

Stay safe and healthy.

DATO’ SRI HO KAM CHOY
Group Managing Director
22 April 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
cont’d
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Executive Chairman on 1 December 2019.

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

In 2008, he was appointed as Director of Haisan Resources Berhad 
until his resignation in April 2016. 

Currently, he is a Director of some of the Subsidiaries of the Group and 
also sits on the Board of other Private Companies.    

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

None

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of this Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
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DATO’ SRI HO KAM CHOY 
Group Managing Director

Malaysian
Age 59, Male

DATE APPOINTED TO THE 
BOARD

5 August 2016

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 
March 2022)

5 years 7 months

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

22 June 2020

Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy was 
appointed as Non-Independent 
Non-Executive Director on 5 
August 2016 and subsequently 
re-designated as Executive 
Director on 12 January 2017. He 
was then appointed as the Group 
Managing Director on 30 August 
2017.

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

He obtained his GCE “A” Level from Christ Church Secondary School, 
Singapore in 1983. Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy has more than 30 years of 
experience in commercial management of vessels in the shipping 
industry. 

From 1988 to 1989, Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy joined Tai Kuang Hang Co. 
Pte. Ltd, Singapore as a Shipping Executive and was in-charge with 
ship chartering and operations of vessels. 

Subsequently, from 1989 to 1991, Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy joined a 
Hong Kong trading and shipping company, Kelway Enterprise Ltd 
as a Manager and was in charge for the commercial management 

transportation of bulk/bagged cargo and shipping.

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

None

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

Mr. Ho Hung Ming, an Alternate Director to Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin 
Mohd Zinin is his son.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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CAPTAIN TONY TAN HAN 
(CHEN HAN) 
Executive Director

Singaporean

DATE APPOINTED TO THE BOARD

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 March 
2022)

7 years

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

Captain Tony was appointed to the 
Board as an Independent Non-

and subsequently re-designated as 
Executive Director on 12 January 2017.             

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND WORKING 
EXPERIENCE

He obtained his Master of Science (Maritime Studies) f rom Nanyang 
Technological University Singapore in 2018 and Diploma in Nautical Studies 
from Singapore Polytechnics in 1999. In 2009, he obtained a Specialist Diploma 
in Workplace Safety and Health from Ngee Ann Polytechnics. Captain Tony 

issued by the Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore.

He started his career as a Marine Superintendent / Senior Marketing Executive 
with EZRA Marine Services Pte Ltd in 2007 where he was responsible to ensure 
smooth implementation of the Safety and Environmental Management 

Subsequently, he joined Hako Offshore Pte Ltd in 2010 as a Senior Safety 
Manager/ Designated Person Ashore where he was tasked to manage and 
implement the Safety Management System throughout the organisation 
and for the fleet vessels, addressing deficiencies pertaining to manning 
requirement and training, conducting internal audits and participating in the 
emergency response team and ensuring that adequate resources and shore-
based support are applied as required.

He established Skips Marine Services Pte Ltd in Singapore in 2012 and was the 
Managing Director where he oversees the business and contractual obligation 
to the company’s clients and implementation of safety standards. Captain Tony 
is well versed in the maritime industry and has over 20 years of professional 
marine experience in both sea-going and shore-based operations which 

ship operations and marine safety operations.

He was also involved in audit, incident investigation as well as implementation 
of International Safety Management (“ISM”) appointments. Captain Tony is 
in charge of the Group’s vessel management and maintenance business 
segment. He is also responsible for formulating strategies to secure oil-related 
product supplies and building a customer base. 

The ship management services division via Straits Marine Services Pte Ltd and 
Straits Maritime Services Pte Ltd is also currently under the direct supervision 
of Captain Tony, where he is responsible to oversee and ensure the Vessels 
owned by the Group are well maintain and the cost of maintenance and 
management is kept at a very competitive level.

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

None

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND ANY PUBLIC 
SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT REGULATORY BODIES 
(OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are disclosed in the 
Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 39 of this Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d



TAN SRI MOHD BAKRI BIN 
MOHD ZININ 
Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Malaysian
Age 68, Male

DATE APPOINTED TO THE 
BOARD

3 June 2016

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 
March 2022)

5 years 9 months 

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

He obtained his Diploma in Police Science f rom Universiti 
Kebangsaan Malaysia in 1989. He started his career in the police force 
on 6 November 1975 as a probationary inspector. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri 
was appointed as Deputy Inspector General of the Royal Malaysia 
Police Force on 17 May 2013. 

He served as Police Chief of Kudat, Sandakan, Police Chief and Deputy 
Police Chief of Kota Kinabalu, Seremban District Deputy Police Chief, 
Police Chief Lahad Datu District, Police Chief of Cheras and Dang 
Wangi District. 

Tan Sri Mohd Bakri has also served as Assistant Director of the 
Criminal Intelligence Unit in the Bukit Aman Criminal Investigation 
Department before being appointed as Sabah CID Chief in 2003. 

In 2005, he was appointed as the Deputy Police Commissioner. In 
2006, he was appointed as Deputy Director (Intelligence/Operations) 
CID Narcotics and became its Director a year later. 

In 2008, he was appointed as Director of the Criminal Investigation 
Department, Bukit Aman. Since June 2016, he is a member of the 
Police Force Commission Board. 

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

 Chairman of the Board Risk & Compliance Committee
 Member of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of this Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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LEONG FOOK HENG
Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Malaysian
Age 63, Male

DATE APPOINTED TO THE 
BOARD

17 August 2015

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 
March 2022)

6 years 7 months

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

22 June 2020

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

He is an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries 
and Administrators and Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants (United Kingdom) and is also a Member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants. 

Leasing Company in 1981 and subsequently rose to the rank of a 
Branch Manager. He was then promoted as Senior Manager, Head of 

In 2001, he joined Citibank Bhd as Vice President, Head of Asset 
Based Finance Division and was also appointed a Director of Citicorp 
Capital (Malaysia) Bhd. Thereafter, he joined a local Bank and held the 
position of General Manager, Business Banking for more than 5 years.

Subsequently, he joined an International Banking Group, which owns 

He was also a Regional CEO at one of the Banks and a Board Member 
of another two Banks within the Banking Group.

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

 Chairman of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
 Member of the Board Risk & Compliance Committee

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of this Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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HARISON BINTI YUSOFF 
Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Malaysian
Age 65, Female

DATE APPOINTED TO THE BOARD

1 March 2020

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 March 
2022)

2 years  

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

22 June 2020

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND WORKING 
EXPERIENCE

Puan Harison obtained her Bachelor of Science with Education (Honours) 
Degree from University Malaya in 1983. In order to equip herself better in the 
corporate world, she obtained her Diploma in Public Relations in 1995 from 
International Correspondence Schools. 

In 2011, she completed her Master in Managerial Psychology from HELP 
University. She started her career as a secondary school teacher in government 
schools before joining the private sector in 1993.    

Subsequently, for the next f ive (5) years, Puan Harison served in several 
companies, as a PR and Communications practitioner with Silicon 
Communications, Mahir Events and Yaohan Berhad. In 1998, she joined 
Petrosains Discovery Centre, a subsidiary of PETRONAS, as Head of Public 
Relations. She helped develop standard processes and procedures for 
communication, issue management and crisis preparedness. 

In 2006, Puan Harison was seconded to the PETRONAS Corporate Affairs 
Department to handle corporate social responsibility programmes (“CSR”) 

CSR programme called “Program Bakti Pendidikan PETRONAS”, she was 
responsible for strategising and implementing the programme, groupwide. 
She succeeded in taking the programme to greater heights and managed to 
recruit and develop over 600 volunteers.

From 2008 to 2012, Puan Harison was assigned as Learning Manager with 

programmes, like the Global Mindset for Leaders programme in collaboration 
with the US-based Thunderbird School of Global Management and Building 
Leaders Programme (“BLP”). BLP uses an innovative approach in identifying 
critical skills for future leaders through EQ assessment and intervention to 
bridge the skill gaps and address competency issues

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

None

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND ANY PUBLIC 
SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT REGULATORY BODIES 
(OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are disclosed 
in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 39 of this Annual 
Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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HO FOOK MENG 
Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Malaysian

DATE APPOINTED TO THE 
BOARD

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 
March 2022)

7 years 

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

19 June 2019

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

He graduated from the University of Malaya, Kuala Lumpur with a 
Bachelor of Economics (Honours) degree in 1981 and holds a Masters 
of Business Administration from Kent State University, Ohio, USA. 

Mr. Ho started his career in the banking and f inancial services 
industry in 1981 and has over 30 years experience in the said industry. 

As a senior banker, he is very often tapped for his expertise and wide 
ranging experience by his banking clients and investors in their 
growth and expansion strategies. 

He has established a very wide business network that was built over 
the years as banker.

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

 Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
 Member of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Board Risk & Compliance Committee

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of this Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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HO HUNG MING
Alternate Director to Tan Sri 
Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin

Malaysian
Age 30, Male

DATE APPOINTED TO THE 
BOARD

Appointed as an Alternate 
Director to Tan Sri Mohd Bakri 
Bin Mohd Zinin on 12 January 
2017 

LENGTH OF SERVICE (as at 31 
March 2022)

Not applicable

DATE OF LAST RE-ELECTION

Not applicable

ACADEMIC/PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION/MEMBERSHIP(S) AND 
WORKING EXPERIENCE

In July 2019, he was promoted from his current position as the 
General Manager of Selatan Bunker (M) Sdn Bhd (“Selatan Bunker”), 
a position he has held since December 2016 to be the Marketing 
Director of Tumpuan Megah Development Sdn Bhd (“TMD”) to 
oversee the development and expansion of the Group’s oil bunkering 
services, product and its customer base. 

Mr. Ho Hung Ming holds a Bachelor Degree (Hons) in Economics 
and Politics and a Masters Degree in Project Management from 

respectively. 

After graduation, he joined TMD as a management trainee and was 
attached to various functions of the company’s business operations, 

He was then promoted as a manager of TMD in charge of sales and 
marketing and management. TMD is involved in the business of 
supplying bunkering services, oil trading and barging to customers in 
the shipping industry of Marine Gas Oil (“MGO”). On 1 July 2019, he was 
re-designated as Marketing Director on TMD.

MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD COMMITTEE

None

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP WITH ANY DIRECTOR AND/OR MAJOR 
SHAREHOLDER

He is the son of Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy, the Group Managing Director 
of the Company.

CONVICTION FOR OFFENCES WITHIN THE PAST 5 YEARS AND 
ANY PUBLIC SANCTION OR PENALTY IMPOSED BY RELEVANT 
REGULATORY BODIES (OTHER THAN TRAFFIC OFFENCES) DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

None

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP(S) IN OTHER PUBLIC/LISTED COMPANIES

None

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement on page 
39 of this Annual Report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
cont’d
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BENJAMIN BERNARD BIJION 

Victoria STS (Labuan) Sdn Bhd

Malaysian
Age 62, Male

QUALIFICATIONS

He attended his First Mate Foreign-Going Ship Post Sea Course at 
Malaysia Maritime Academy, Malacca in 1986 and qualif ied with 

year 1989, attended a three (3) months Advance Aviation & Maritime 
Search and Rescue Course conducted by Civil Aviation Department, 
Subang Airport College. In year 2000, attended a one (1) month 
comprehensive Marine Surveyor’s Course as per International 

Malacca. In year 2001, attended a six (6) months Advance Marine 
Surveyor and Ship Engineering Course at JICA Training Centre in 
Yokohama, Japan.

WORKING EXPERIENCE

Department, Sabah State Government in 1979 and attached with 

cadetship onboard M.V. Lautan Rani with Lautan Biru Shipping Sdn. 
Bhd. In 1980 for approximately 3 years before he served as second Mate 
onboard M.V. Gaya Dua managed by Malaysian International Shipping 
Corporation Berhad in 1985. In 1987, he served onboard as Chief Mate 

Marine Department in charge of Maritime Safety and Navigation 

charge of Marine Engineering and Survey Division. Subsequently in 
2002, promoted as Marine Director with Sabah Marine Department 
based in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah. 

Thereafter he joined Malaysia Marine Department in 2007 and 
continue serving as Marine Director in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah until 
2008. Then transferred back to Labuan Federal Territory as Regional 
Marine Director in year 2009 until retirement in 2020.

In April 2021, he joined Victoria STS (Labuan) Sdn Bhd where he is 
responsible for any matters related to all government agency and 
to ensure compliance with all requirements as stated in the policy 
approved by Ministry of Transport and also to ensure compliance with 
all requirements stated in the Condition of Approval from Malaysia 
Marine Department.

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group on 1 of April 2021.

 No family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder 

 No convictions for any offences and no public sanctions by any 

 He does not hold any directorship in other public companies and 
listed issuers.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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HO KHIN CHOY

Straits CommNet Solutions  
Sdn Bhd

Malaysian
Age 53, Male

QUALIFICATIONS

Obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering minoring 
in Telecommunication and Computer Engineering from the University of 
Louisiana (formerly known as University of Southwestern Louisiana), Lafayette 
Louisiana, United States of America, in December 1990.

WORKING EXPERIENCE

He started his telecommunication working career as early as 1991 where 
he was a Microwave Transmission Field Test Engineer for Alcatel Standard 

generation mobile networks (ETACS and AMPS) doing network testing and 

In 1995, when the second generation mobile network GSM came into play, he 

Digi. Com Berhad.

He made a slight change in his career where he decided get involved 
in network consulting and business development, hence he worked for 

he played a leading role in managing the division, growing the engineering 
and consultancy business and resources for the APAC region. In Nokia, he 
played a Business Development and Sales role, creating and improving and 

of operation processes, the advantages/disadvantages of the processes 
affecting services and a subject matter expert in Network Design and Service 
Management Platform services solutions, creating business opportunities for 
the Managed Services portfolio. 

Throughout his working career, he also worked for a few startup companies 
like Blah! where the objective is to provide wireless value add services to world 

products, something like ‘Whatsapp” in this current age. 

Another startup company where he is involved in is OpenSignal in 2016 
where the main objective of this mobile network data crowdsourcing start-up 
company is to build the brand and penetrate into APAC market.

Other companies that he has been a part of are Ascom Network Testing, 
Kathrein APAC, Axiata’s Edotco and Digital National Berhad. 

All and all, he is a highly motivated result-oriented person with more than 
31 years of accomplishment in the telecommunication industry. A solution 
consultant at heart with extensive record of creating, aligning and building 
requirements to achieve excellence and customer satisfaction. An all-rounder 
hands-on individual with regional sales, business development experiences 
in the mobile, wireless and connectivity industry. High in professional ethics, 
sound technical background, empathy, committed and trustworthy.

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group on 3 February 2022.

 He is the brother of Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy, the Group Managing Director 
of the Company.

 Convictions for any offences and no public sanctions by any regulatory 

as he joined the Group in year 2022.

 He does not hold any directorship in other public companies and listed 
issuers.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
cont’d
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CAPTAIN DJIE KWANG LIONG 

Straits Marine Services Pte Ltd

Singaporean

QUALIFICATIONS

He obtained his Bachelor Degree in Maritime Operations from the 

the Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore in 2007 and a Diploma 
of Nautical Studies from Singapore Polytechnic in 1999. In 2009, 
he obtained a Specialist Diploma in Workplace Safety and Health 
from Ngee Ann Polytechnic. Captain Wilson has a Certif icate of 
Competency (“COC”) Class 1 Master Mariner (Foreign-going) issued by 
the Maritime Port Authority of Singapore.

WORKING EXPERIENCE

where he worked in the Port Operations Department responsible 
to ensure smooth operations of the Port Operation Control Centre 1 
(“POCC 1”) and thereafter worked in the Marine Safety Department 
ensuring the Safety and Environmental Enforcement within Singapore 
Port waters. 

Subsequently, he joined the Braemar Technical Offshore Services 
under the Braemar Group in 2009 as a Marine Warranty surveyor/ 
CIMD/Offshore Vessel Inspection Database Inspector where he 
attended to various types of Anchor Handling & Supply Tugs, Towing 
Tugs, Seismic Operations vessel, & supervising Load Out operation, 
Towage Approval and Float On/Off of Jack-Up Rigs around the world.

In 2011, he joined the Jaya Offshore Company as Marine Safety 

In 2012, he co-founded Skips Marine Services Pte Ltd in Singapore and 
was the Safety Director where he responsible to secure the Document 
of Compliance with the relevant authorities and maintaining the ISO 
9001 and the OHSAS 18001 system.

In 2019, he joined and set up Straits Marine Services Pte Ltd where 
he is responsible for the implementation of the International Safety 

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group on 1 July 2019.

 No family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder 

ended 31 December 2021.

 He does not hold any directorship in other public companies and 
listed issuers.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
cont’d
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IDJAL BIN TAHIR

Megah Port Management 
Sdn Bhd

Malaysian
Age 51, Male

QUALIFICATIONS

WORKING EXPERIENCE

He has approximately 30 years of experience in the general cargo and 
container operations in the Labuan port. He commenced his career 
in 1990 with Standard Marine Agencies Sdn Bhd as Shipping Clerk 
who responsible to oversees and keeps records of all shipping and 
receiving. 

He left Standard Marine Agencies Sdn Bhd in 1993 and joined Mercury 
Line Sdn Bhd as Shipping Assistant which he was mainly responsible 
to process incoming and outgoing shipments.

In 1999 he was appointed as a Director and Operation Manager in 
Sailion Shipping Sdn Bhd where he was responsible for various tasks 
such as packaging, verifying content for shipping, receiving packages, 
ordering supplies, leading and managing staff. 

The port management division via Megah Port Management Sdn 
Bhd is currently under his direct supervision where he is in charge of 
the implementation of business operations activities in Labuan Port 
and ensuring the company’s policies meet Labuan Port Authority’s 
regulations. 

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group on 25 February 2020.

 No family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder 

ended 31 December 2021.

 He does not hold any directorship in other public companies and 
listed issuers.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
cont’d
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CHAI YIING JEN
Managing Director 
Straits Alliance Transport 
Sdn Bhd

Malaysian

QUALIFICATIONS

He graduated from Ferris State University, USA, with an Associate 
Degree majoring in Automotive Service Technology in 2000.

WORKING EXPERIENCE

He began his career as a Coordination Engineer with General Motors, 
USA in 2001 which he was mainly responsible for the research and 
development of motor vehicles and trucks, apart from monitoring and 
providing training to its technicians on new automotive technology, 
as well as developing a new system to monitor recruitment and 
performance of its employees. He left General Motors in 2002. 

(“Kee Fatt”) as its executive director, where he was responsible for 
overseeing the overall daily operational matters and formulating the 
business development plans and activities of Kee Fatt. He was also 
taking charge of the logistics related matters which include, amongst 
others, the coordination of drivers on duty, the arrangement of 
truck maintenance, as well as to monitor and implement the safety 
requirements and transportation issued so as to be in compliance 
with the requirements set by the company’s clients. 

transportation service provider, and as an executive director, he was 
mainly involved in the provision of land transportation services for his 
customers who are mainly construction players. In 2015, he left Kee 
Fatt and fully devoted his time in Am Alliances. He had since left Am 
Alliances in 2018, to fully devote his time in Straits Alliances Transport 
Sdn Bhd (“SAT”) from February 2019 onwards. 

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group as director of SAT on 19 February 2019.

 No family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder 

ended 31 December 2021.

 He does not hold any directorship in other public companies and 
listed issuers.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
cont’d
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HOH CHEE MUN 
Financial Controller
Straits Group

Malaysian
Age 57, Male

QUALIFICATIONS

He is a Chartered Accountant. He completed his Malaysian Institute 

Accountant), and was admitted as a Member of MICPA on 29 January 

WORKING EXPERIENCE

articleship with BDO Binder as an Article Clerk before furthering his 
career in 1990 with Ernst & Young as an Audit Assistant, where he had 
completed his MICPA examination.

Thereafter, he left Ernst & Young in 1995 as an Audit Senior and joined 
Fella Design Group, a regional furniture manufacturer cum retailer 

audit, human resources and information technology in 1996. 

In 2005, he became the Finance Director of VHQ Group of Companies, 

Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Thailand, Vietnam and China. 

Before he was appointed as the Financial Controller of the Group, 
between 2012 to 2017, he provided general management consultancy 
and GST services in Malaysia.

ADDITIONAL NOTES ON KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Joined the Group on 1 April 2017.

 No family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder 

ended 31 December 2021.

 He is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of QES 
Group Berhad.

PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
cont’d
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The Audit Committee (“AC”) of Straits Energy Resources Berhad (formerly known as Straits Inter Logistics 

December 2021 (“FYE 2021”) in compliance with paragraph 15.15 of the ACE Market Listing Requirements 
(“AMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). 

MEMBERSHIP

The AC comprises three (3) members, all of whom are Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors namely:-

Chairman :  Leong Fook Heng
  Independent Non-Executive Director

Member :  Ho Fook Meng
  Independent Non-Executive Director

 :  Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin
  Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

None of the Independent Non-Executive Directors have appointed Alternate Directors. 

The Chairman of the AC, Mr. Leong Fook Heng is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
(“MIA”) and Associate Member of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (United Kingdom). 
Accordingly, the Company complies with Rule 15.09(1)(c)(i) of the AMLR. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference (“TOR”) of the AC outlining the composition, authorities, roles and responsibilities 
of the AC, which are consistent with the requirements of the AMLR of Bursa Securities and the 
recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”), are available on the 
Company’s website at www.straits-energyresources.com.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

During the FYE 2021, the AC conducted six (6) meetings. The details of attendance of the members of the 
AC are as follows:

No Name of Directors No of Meetings attended %

1. Leong Fook Heng - Chairman 6/6 100

2. Ho Fook Meng - Member 6/6 100

3. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin - Member 6/6 100

and when necessary. All meetings to review the Quarterly Reports and Annual Financial Statements are 
held prior to such Quarterly Reports and Annual Financial Statements being presented to the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) for approval.

The Financial Controller, Internal Auditors, Group Managing Director (“Group MD”) and Key Senior 
Management may attend the AC meetings, on the invitation of the AC, to provide information and 

Representatives of the External Auditors are also invited to attend the AC meetings to present their audit 

Issues raised, discussion, deliberations, decisions and conclusion made at the AC meetings are recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

During the year under review, the Board of Straits, via the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
(“NRC”), performed the annual assessment on the performance of the AC and each of its members 
pursuant to Rule 15.20 of the AMLR of Bursa Securities. This annual assessment was done to evaluate 
whether the AC and each of its members had discharged their responsibilities and duties in accordance 
with the AC’s TOR. 

statements

responsibilities in accordance with the TOR of the AC.

REPORTING TO THE BOARD

and concern discussed during the meeting and to convey the recommendations on the Quarterly Reports 
and Annual Financial Statements with or without amendments as the case may be, to be approved and 
adopted by the Board for release to Bursa Securities.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AC

The AC carried out the following activities in discharging its functions and duties during the FYE 2021:-

1) Financial Reporting

 a) Reviewed the Unaudited Quarterly Financial Reports (inclusive of cumulative year-to-

to the Board for consideration and approval. The items typically reviewed are the Group’s 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as well as the 

Financial Reporting as well as Appendix 9B of AMLR on Quarterly Reports. 

 b) Assessed reasonableness and appropriateness of the judgements or estimations made by 

 c) Reviewed the consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for 
FYE 2021 and ensuring that the statements comply with the MFRS, for recommendation to the 
Board for approval.

  The AC’s review included a critical and intelligent scrutiny of the statutory accounts based on an 
analytical approach, while at the same time obtaining assurance from management and the External 

Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

  The AC’s examination of the statutory accounts had also included a review of the key audit 
matters, their implications to the audit of the Company and of the Group and how the matters 
were addressed in the audit; going concern considerations; corporate governance disclosures; 
and information other than the f inancial statements and the Auditors’ Report that were 
included in the Company’s Annual Report. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AC (cont’d)

1) Financial Reporting (cont’d)

 c) (cont’d)

External Auditors in their Report to the AC which warranted the AC’s attention. In addition, 
the AC had taken note of any corrected material misstatements related to the accounts and 
reviewed the summary of unadjusted audit differences for the Group. 

  The AC would take note of the External Auditor’s observations arising from the audit that are 

internal controls.

statements, including management’s strategies and measures in managing the impact on 
COVID-19.

2) External Auditor

the re-appointment of Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT (“Moore Stephens”) as External 
Auditors of the Company.

 b) Reviewed with the External Auditors, the Audit Plan for FYE 2021 outlining, amongst others, 
their scope of work, areas of audit emphasis, and development in laws and regulations affecting 

of Risk Management and Internal Control (“SORMIC”) before recommending to the Board for 
approval.

 d) Had private session with the External Auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors 
and Key Senior Management of the Group to apprise on matters in regard to the audit and 

 e) Reviewed the provision of non-audit services rendered by the External Auditors to the Group, 

services given their comprehensive knowledge of the Group’s business operations, systems and 

that the services were not likely to impair the External Auditors’ independence and objectivity.

 f) Recommended the proposed audit fee for the Board’s approval.

 g) Reviewed the extent of assistance rendered by management in the course of the audit and 

operated fully and the External Auditors were able to obtain information requested to carry out 
their work. Based on the review carried out and the report from the External Auditors, the AC 
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AC (cont’d)

2) External Auditor (cont’d)

 h) Reviewed, assessed and monitored the performance, suitability and independence of the 
External Auditors. The External Auditors had provided an annual confirmation of their 
independence in accordance with the terms of all professional and regulatory requirements.

  The AC had conducted an evaluation of the External Auditors for the FYE 2021, encompassing 
technical competencies, adequacy of specialist support and partners/director accessibility and 
time commitment, independence and objectivity, audit scope and planning, audit and non-
audit fees and audit communications to the AC. 

performance, suitability and independence, the AC recommended to the Board for approval of 
the re-appointment of Moore Stephens as Auditors of the Company. A resolution for their re-
appointment will be tabled for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

3) Internal Audit 

 a) Reviewed the annual audit plan proposed by the Internal Auditors to ensure the adequacy of 
the scope and coverage of work.

and coverage of activities of the Company and Group.

were adequately addressed by Management.

 d) Reviewed the Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework.

 e) Monitored and deliberated the implementation of audit recommendations arising from 
internal audit activities as well as the follow-up audits conducted by the Internal Audit function 
to ensure that all key risks and audit issues raised have been addressed and considered the 
timeliness of completion of the proposed actions and whether such actions effectively resolved 
the issues raised.

4) Related Party Transactions

 a) Reviewed on a quarterly basis, the Recurrent Related Party Transactions (“RRPT”) entered into 
by the Company and/or its subsidiaries with related parties to ensure that the Group’s internal 
policies and procedures governing RRPT are adhered to the terms of the shareholders’ mandate 
are not contravened, and disclosure requirements of the AMLR are observed.

and the Group to ensure that the transactions were in the best interest of Straits Group; were 
fair, reasonable and on normal commercial terms; and not detrimental to the interest of the 
minority shareholders of Straits.

 c) Reviewed the Circular to Shareholders in relation to the renewal of shareholders’ mandate for 
RRPT and new shareholder mandate for additional RRPT, prior to its recommendation to the 
Board for approval. 
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AC (cont’d)

5) Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing Policy

 AC reviewed the amendments to the Anti-Bribery & Corruption (“ABC”) policy and Whistleblowing 

practices in relation to the business of the Group. 

 The review was to provide assurance to the Group that its systems, policies and procedures are 

on Adequate Procedures’ issued pursuant to Section 17A(5) of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption 
Commission Act 2009 (Amendment 2018). This Policy was adopted and applied to all companies 
within the Group. This includes all individual workings at all levels and grades.

6) Annual Report

 Reviewed the AC Report, SORMIC, Corporate Governance Overview Statement and Corporate 
Governance Report for FYE 2021 prior to submitting the same to the Board for consideration and 
inclusion in the Annual Report 2021.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

1) The Group’s internal audit function, which reports directly to the AC, is outsourced to Tricor Axcelasia 
Sdn. Bhd (“Axcelasia”). The engagement Executive Director of the outsourced internal audit function 

Assurance from the Institute of Internal Auditors; professional member of the Institute of Internal 

of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

2) The Outsourced Internal Auditor assigns three (3) staff to provide internal audit services to the 

interest, which could impair their objectivity and independence, and the internal audit reviews were 
conducted using a risk-based approach and were guided by the International Professional Practice 
Framework.

 The Internal Audit function have undertaken independent and systematic reviews on the systems 
of internal control and risk management of key operating units within the Group so as to provide 
reasonable assurance that such systems continue to operate satisfactorily, effectively and in 
compliance with the Group’s established policies and procedures.

3) The f inal audit reports containing audit f indings and recommendations together with 
management’s responses thereto were circulated and presented to all members of the AC.

 During the FYE 2021, the Internal Auditors have carried out audits to assess the adequacy of the 
internal controls of the main operating subsidiaries, based on the audit plan approved by the AC. The 

with the Management. Where areas of improvements were required, this was highlighted to the 
Management for implementation. The AC monitored the progress of the implementation. 
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (cont’d)

4)
following:-

 i) Internal Control Review on RRPT

 ii) Review of the Corporate Liability-Anti Bribery and Management System (“CLABMS”)

 iii) Follow-up on Prior Internal Audit

  Detailed analysis of previous internal audit observations on the following:-

   Engagement of Ship Management Services
   Execution of Bunkering Activities

 iv) Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)

 v) Internal Audit Strategy Document (“IASD”)

  Developed the IASD for FYE 31 December 2022 for AC’s deliberation and recommendation.

Based on the internal audit reviews conducted, none of the weaknesses noted has resulted in any 
material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require a separate disclosure in this Annual 
Report.

Total cost incurred on the outsourced Internal Audit function of the Group in respect of the FYE 2021 was 
at RM 30,520 (2020: RM 16,088). 

This report is made in accordance with the approval of the Board on 22 April 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Straits Energy Resources Berhad (formerly known as Straits 
Inter Logistics Berhad) [“Straits” or “the Company”] is pleased to present its statement on Corporate 

2021”).

This Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CG Overview Statement) is prepared pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.25 of the ACE Market Listing Requirements (“AMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Malaysia”) and takes guidance from the key CG principles as set out in the Malaysian Code on 
Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) issued by the Securities Commission Malaysia. 

This CG Overview Statement provides an overview of the CG practices of the Company under the 
leadership of the Board during the FYE 2021 with reference to the 3 key Principles of good corporate 
governance, which are:

Principle A
Board Leadership and Effectiveness

Principle B
Effective Audit and Risk Management

Principle C
Integrity in Corporate Reporting and Meaningful Relationship with Stakeholders

It is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”), which is made 
available online at www.straits-energyresources.com. The CG Report provides the details on how the 

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

Part 1 : Board Responsibilities

1.1 Strategic aims, values and standards

 The Board is responsible for the overall performance of the Company and focuses mainly on 
strategy, performance, standard of conduct and critical business issues.

 The Board is led and managed by experienced Board members with a wide range of 
expertise. It is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company and the 
Group by directing and supervising its business and affairs.

 In setting the Company’s strategic aims, the Board relies on the reports provided by the 
Group Managing Director (“Group MD”) who oversees the entire business and operations of 
the Group.

 In discharging its functions and responsibilities, the Board is guided by the Board Charter, 
Authority Limits and Matters Reserved for the Board.

 The Board has reserved certain material matters for the collective review and decision by the 
Board. Matters reserved for the Board include but are not limited to the following: 

 Group’s business strategy and business plan; 
 Annual budgets, including major capital expenditure projects; 
 Material acquisition and disposal of assets; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
cont’d

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 1 : Board Responsibilities  (cont’d)

1.1 Strategic aims, values and standards  (cont’d)

 The Board delegates certain roles and responsibilities to the Board Committees, namely 
Audit Committee (“AC”), Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and Board Risk & 

 The Chairman of the respective Board Committees report to the Board on key matters 
deliberated at the respective Board Committee meetings and makes recommendations 

decision on all matters lies with the entire Board.

 The Group MD, assisted by the Executive Director and Senior Management Team, is 
responsible for the business and day-to-day management of the Company. The Board will 

presented to the Board by the Financial Controller.

 The TOR for each Board Committee are available on the Company’s corporate website at 
www.straits-energyresources.com.

1.2 Chairman of the Board

 The Chairman of the Board is Y.A.M Dato’ Seri Tengku Baharuddin Ibni Almarhum Sultan 

 Board and Shareholders’ meetings are chaired by the Chairman. During Board meetings, 
the Chairman ensures that all Directors are given an equal opportunity to raise important 
matters and voice their views on proposals submitted. 

 The Chairman leads and ensures the effectiveness of the Board by among others, 

 The Chairman of the Board is not a member of any of the Board Committees so as to ensure 
that the objectivity of the Chairman and the Board is not impaired when deliberating on 
observations and recommendations put forth by the Board Committees.

 The Chairman’s performance was evaluated under the Board assessment in 2022 which was 
facilitated by the NRC with the assistance of the Company Secretary.

1.3 Separation of role of Chairman and Group MD

 The position of the Chairman and Group MD are held by different individuals. The Chairman 
is a Non-Independent Non-Executive member of the Board, who provides leadership for the 
Board so that the Board can discharge its duties effectively. He leads the Board meetings 
and discussions and encourages active participations as well as allows dissenting views to be 
heard. 

 The Group MD, the Executive Director and Senior Management Team are responsible for 
the implementation of the Group’s goals and execution of the business plans as laid out by 
the Board. The Group MD and the Executive Director will translate the Board’s decisions, 
business plans and policies into operational goals and set the Key Performance Indicators for 
the Management and staff for the year.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 1 : Board Responsibilities  (cont’d)

1.4 Company Secretary

Company Secretary under Section 235(2) of the Companies Act 2016 and they are members 
of the Malaysian Association of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators 
(“MAICSA”) and Malaysian Association of Company Secretaries (“MACS”) respectively.

all governance matters and Board’s procedures are followed and that applicable laws and 
regulations are complied with. The Board has direct access to the advices and services of the 
Company Secretaries.

 The Company Secretaries attended relevant training and seminars conducted by the 
Companies Commission of Malaysia, MAICSA and Bursa Malaysia to keep themselves abreast 
with the regulatory changes and corporate governance development.

1.5 Information and Support for Directors

 The meeting materials are made accessible to the Directors within reasonable periods prior 

the independent advisers before the Board meetings, if necessary. This enables the Directors 
to discuss the issues effectively at the Board meetings. 

 The Board has access to all information within the Company as a full Board to enable 
them to discharge their duties and responsibilities and is supplied in a timely basis with 

for informed decision making and meaningful discharge of its duties. 

1.6 Board Charter

Code of Conduct to ensure the implementation of appropriate internal systems to support, 
promote and ensure its compliance. A whistleblowing and anti-bribery and corruption 
policies were also adopted as part of the Company’s commitment to the highest standards 
of professional integrity, ethical behavior, transparency and fair dealing in the conduct of its 
business.

 The Directors discharge their duties as effective Board members with personal dedication 
of time and ability to bring new and different perspectives to the Board. The Board Charter, 
which clearly sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, 
Chairman, Group MD and Executive Director, is available on the corporate website of the 
Company for easy access.

 The Board Charter demarcates the responsibilities between Board, Board Committee, 
Chairman, Group MD, Individual Director and Company Secretaries. The Board shall review 
the said Charter periodically and any amendments/improvements shall be made thereto as 
and when the Board deems appropriate and necessary. Any subsequent amendments shall 
be approved by the Board.

 The Board Charter can be found at the Company’s corporate website at www.straits-
energyresources.com. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 1 : Board Responsibilities  (cont’d)

1.7 Code of Conduct and Ethics

 The Board strives to adhere to the highest ethical standards in discharging its responsibilities 
and continues to promote integrity and ethical conduct among its employees in all aspects 

interest, as well as Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”) performance, amongst others.

 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct & Business Ethics which sets out the 
guidelines on ethical issues which may arise during the course of business and the standards 
of behavior expected of all Directors and employees.

 The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website at www.straits-energyresources.com.

1.8 Whistleblowing Policy 

standard of corporate governance, business integrity and its Code of Conduct.

 The Board encourages employees and associates to report any genuine concerns 
about misconduct, wrongdoings, corruption and instances of f raud, and/or abuse 
that they encounter involving the interests of the Company and to provide protection 
for its employees and associates who report such allegations. The Whistleblowing 
Policy established by the Group provides an avenue for all parties to report any known 
malpractices/wrongdoings.

 The Whistle-Blowing Policy is available on the Company’s website at www.straits-energyresources.com.

1.9 Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

 In compliance with the Corporate Liability Provision Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-
Corruption Commission Act 2009 enforced on 1 June 2020, and guided by the principles of 
the Ministerial Guidelines and Rule 15.28 of the AMLR in relation to anti-bribery, the Board 
has adopted its Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy and Procedures (“ABC”) in order to 
achieve and maintain the highest standard of integrity and work ethics in the conduct of its 
business and operations.

and corruption and also related matters such as proper reporting and accounting. 

Part 2 : Board Composition

2.1 Composition of Board

decision making process and the transparency of policies and procedures in selection and 
evaluation of Board members.

 In accordance with Clause 21.1 of the Company’s Constitution, unless otherwise determined 
by General Meeting, the number of directors shall not be less than two (2) nor more than 
twelve (12). 

 As at 31 March 2022, the Board has seven (7) Directors comprising two (2) Executive Directors, three 
(3) Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors and two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.1 Composition of Board  (cont’d)

 The present composition of the Board is in compliance with Rule 15.02 of the AMLR 
whereby at least two (2) directors or one-third (1/3) of the Board, whichever is the higher, are 
independent directors.

 The present Board composition comprises Executive and Non-Executive Directors with 

enable the Board to carry out its responsibilities effectively. 

 The accumulation of expertise and experience as well as the nurturing of an open and 
transparent discussion environment during Board meetings, have help to ensure healthy 
discussion and deliberation on Company’s matters.

2.2 Presence of the Independent Directors 

 The presence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors provides guidance, independent 
views, advice and judgement in ensuring that the strategies proposed are discussed and 
examined. This provides a balance in the Board to safeguard the interest of minority shareholders 
and to ensure that high standards of conduct and integrity are maintained by the Group.

2.3 Tenure of an Independent Director

 The Board through its NRC had conducted an assessment of the independence of all its 

provide objective and independent judgment in deliberation of the Board’s agenda.

 Annual appraisals on the Independent Directors are also conducted via a self-assessment 

recommending to the Board on its composition. 

 The Board will continuously evaluate from time to time the independence of each of its 
Independent Directors. In this regard, the Board will be guided by the criteria set out in the AMLR. 

 As at to-date, the tenure of all our Independent Directors does not exceed nine (9) years.

2.4 Diversity of Board and Senior Management

 The Board is supportive of diversity on the Board and in the Senior Management Team. 
Appointment of members of the Board and the Senior Management Team are based on 
objective criteria, merit and also due regard for diversity in experience, skills set, age and 
cultural background. 

 The Board, when making appointments, will consider skills and experience needed as well as 
gender balance to expand the perspective and capability of the Board as a whole. 

work towards having more female Directors on the Board. This similarly applies to Senior 
Management Team.

 The Group has, at all times, practices non-discrimination on the basis of, but not limited to, 
age, gender, ethnicity or religion, educational and cultural background or geographic region 
when selecting Board member and Senior Management Team.

 The Group currently has two (2) female Directors on the Board i.e one in the Company and 
one in the subsidiary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
cont’d

38



PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.5  Time Commitment of the Directors

by resolutions circulated to the Directors for decision between the scheduled meetings.

 During the FYE 2021, the Board had convened a total of eight (8) Board meetings for the 

strategic and important matters and all the said meetings were conducted virtually in light of 
the COVID-19 pandemic.

 During the Board meetings, the Board reviewed the operations and performance of the 
Group and other strategic issues that may affect the Group’s business. Relevant senior 
management members were invited to attend some of the Board meetings to provide the 

to attend Board and/or Board Committee meetings for the FYE 2021.

 The attendance of Directors during the FYE 2021 is set out below:-

No Name of Directors Board AC NRC BRCC

1. Y.A.M Dato’ Seri Tengku Baharuddin Ibni 

Billah Shah
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

5/8
(63%)

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

2. Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy
Group Managing Director

8/8
(100%)

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

3. Capt Tony Tan Han (Chen Han)
Executive Director

8/8
(100%)

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

Ho Fook Meng
Independent Non-Executive Director

8/8
(100%)

6/6
(100%)

1/1
(100%)

11/11
(100%)

5. Leong Fook Heng
Independent Non-Executive Director

8/8
(100%)

6/6
(100%)

1/1
(100%)

10/11
(91%)

6. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

8/8
(100%)

6/6
(100%)

1/1
(100%)

11/11
(100%)

7. Puan Harison Binti Yusoff
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

7/8
(88%)

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

Not 
Member

 Note:-

 All Directors do not hold more than 5 directorships as required under Rule 15.06 of the AMLR. 

 The attendance of all the Directors at Board meetings held during the FYE 2021 surpassed 
the minimum requirements stipulated under the AMLR.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.6 Directors’ Training Programme

keep themselves abreast of the latest developments in areas related to their duties and to 
themselves with the necessary skills and knowledge to meet the challenges faced by the Board. 

 All Directors are provided with ongoing professional development and training opportunities 
to enable them to develop and maintain their skills and knowledge. Directors are also 
encouraged to personally undertake appropriate training and courses as appropriate to 
maintain the skills required to discharge their obligations to the Group.

 As at the date of this Annual Report, the training programmes and seminars attended by the 
Directors are as follows:-

No Name of Director Training/Seminar/Programmes Attended Date

1. Y.A.M Dato’ Seri 
Tengku Baharuddin 
Ibni Almarhum Sultan 

Billah Shah

Update on latest MCCG
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009 

03/02/2021

2. Dato’ Sri Ho Kam 
Choy

Update on latest MCCG
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

03/02/2021

3. Capt Tony Tan Han 
(Chen Han)

Update on latest MCCG
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

03/02/2021

Ho Fook Meng Update on latest MCCG
Audit Oversight Board (AOB) Conversation 
with Audit Committees
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

06/12/2021

03/02/2021

5. Leong Fook Heng Update on latest MCCG
Audit Oversight Board (AOB) Conversation 
with Audit Committees
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

06/12/2021

03/02/2021

6. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri 
Bin Mohd Zinin

Update on latest MCCG
Audit Oversight Board (AOB) Conversation 
with Audit Committees
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

06/12/2021

03/02/2021

7. Puan Harison Binti 
Yusoff

Update on latest MCCG
Corporate Liability Awareness Training in 
relation to Corporate Liability Provision 
(Section 17A) of the MACC Act 2009

03/02/2021

 All our Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme as prescribed by Bursa 
Malaysia.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.7 Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

(a) The Board had established an NRC comprised majority of Independent Non-Executive 
Directors as follows:-

Chairman :  Ho Fook Meng
   Independent Non-Executive Director 

Member :  Leong Fook Heng
   Independent Non-Executive Director

Member :  Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin
   Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the NRC.

 The TOR of the NRC is available on Company’s corporate website at www.straits-
energyresources.com.

(b) The NRC is empowered by the Board to amongst others, identify and recommend to 
the Board suitable candidates for appointment to the Board and Board Committees, 
re-election and re-appointment of Directors, and review the independence of 
Independent Directors as well as considering the Board’s succession planning and 
training programme.

(c) Boardroom Appointments

 The selection, nomination and appointment of suitable candidates to the Board follow a 
transparent process. Review of candidates for Board appointment has been delegated to 
the NRC.

 NRC is also responsible to review the existing composition of the Board, identifying the 
gaps and subsequently review and recommend to the Board a suitable candidate with 
the relevant skillsets, expertise and experience

 The NRC shall evaluate candidates on the aspect of their: 

 Professionalism, Integrity, Commitment and Ethics
 Age, Skills, Knowledge, Expertise and Experiences
 Judgement and Decision Making
 Such other factors which would contribute to the Board’s collective skills
 For position of Independent Non-Executive Director, the candidates’ abilities to 

discharge such responsibilities/ functions independently as expected from the 
Independent Non-Executive Director

 In identifying candidates for appointment of Directors, the Board does not solely rely on 
recommendations from existing Board members, Senior Management Team or major 
shareholders.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.7 Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)  (cont’d)

(d) A summary of the activities undertaken by the NRC in the discharge of its duty for the 
FYE 2021 up to 18 April 2022 are as follows:-

1) Assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and 
the contribution and performance of each individual Director including the 
performance of the Executive Directors;

2) Reviewed and recommended the re-election of Directors who were due for 
retirement by rotation;

3) Assessed and recommended for Board’s consideration, the appointment of 
additional Director in the subsidiary’s Board; 

5) Assessed the independence of the Independent Directors;

6) Reviewed and assessed the mix of skills, knowledge, industry experience, age, 
cultural background, gender and other distinctions among the Directors; 

7) Assessed the training needs of Directors and identify suitable training 
programmes for Directors; 

and

9) Reviewed and recommended Directors’ Fees and benefits payable to Non-
Executive Directors to the Board for recommendation.

2.8 Retirement and Re-election of Directors 

 The retirement and re-election of Directors is made in accordance with the Company’s 
Constitution where one-third (1/3) of the Directors or if their number is not three (3) or a 

every three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election.

 The re-election of Directors will be tabled for shareholders’ approval at every Annual General 

re-election is disclosed in the Annual Report.

 For the forthcoming AGM, the following Directors will be retiring by rotation, and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-election:

1) Ho Fook Meng
2) Harison Binti Yusoff
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Board Composition  (cont’d)

2.9 Annual Assessment/Evaluation

 The Board undergoes an annual assessment to review its performance via feedback 
obtained through an electronically deployed questionnaire.

 The Board has formal assessment processes covering Board Assessment, Board Skills 
Matrix, Individual Directors Assessment, Board Committee Self and Peer Assessment, and 
Assessment of Independence of Independent Directors. Individual Directors undertook 
a self and peer assessment in respect of their contributions and performance, caliber and 
personality.

 This performance assessment is overseen by the NRC. 

 The annual Board assessment provides useful insights on the strengths and weaknesses of 
the Board, the Board Committees and individual Directors, which facilitates improvement of 
its members to raise the bar on performance for a more progressive Board.

 Based on the results of the annual assessment, the NRC has made the following 
observations:

the right mix of skills, credibility and with necessary knowledge, experience and 

 all Board Committees members have discharged their duties with care and diligence 
according to the respective TOR. 

 The overall performance of our Board, Board Committees and individual Directors were 
found to be satisfactory. 

as areas of strength. 

in monitoring strategy execution, risk management, and engaging further on current issues 
faced by the Group.

Part 3 : Remuneration

3.1 The NRC has been delegated the responsibility to review and recommend to the Board the 
remuneration package.

3.2 The remuneration policy of the Company was established to attract, motivate and retain 

managing the Company effectively. The reward levels commensurate with the competitive 

the person’s experience, level of responsibilities and linked to corporate performance, where 
applicable, and consistent with the Company’s culture, objective and strategy, in particular.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
cont’d

43



PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 3 : Remuneration  (cont’d)

3.3 The remunerations of Executive Directors will be determined based on the Company’s 

individual Directors, while the remuneration for Non-Executive Directors is based on their 
contribution and level of responsibilities.

 The Non-Executive Directors will receive a f ixed base fee, not by a commission or on 
percentage of profits/turnover, as consideration for their Board duties. The aggregate 
amount of directors’ fees to be paid to s Non-Executive Directors is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders at a AGM.

3.4 The determination of Directors’ fees for all Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the Board 

3.5 The Board applies Practice 8.1 of the MCCG to disclose Directors’ remuneration on named 
basis for individual Directors with detailed remuneration breakdown. 

3.5.1 The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company for FYE 2021 are as follows: 

 COMPANY LEVEL

 Non-Executive Directors

No Name
Fees

RM
Allowance

RM
Total

RM

1. Y.A.M Dato’ Seri Tengku Baharuddin Ibni 
Almarhum Sultan Mahmud Al-Muktafi 
Billah Shah 58,000

2. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin 21,600 69,600

3. Leong Fook Heng 20,800 68,800

Ho Fook Meng 21,600 69,600

5. Harison Binti Yusoff

Total 246,000 74,400 320,400

 COMPANY LEVEL

 Managing Director and Executive Directors

No Name
Salaries

RM
Bonus

RM
EPF
RM

in Kind
RM

Total
RM

1. Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy
Group Managing 
Director 360,000 30,000 923

2. Capt Tony Tan Han 
(Chen Han)
Executive Director - - - - -

Total 360,000 30,000 46,800 923 437,723

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
cont’d

44



PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 3 : Remuneration  (cont’d)

3.5 The Board applies Practice 8.1 of the MCCG to disclose Directors’ remuneration on named 
basis for individual Directors with detailed remuneration breakdown.  (cont’d)

3.5.1 The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company for FYE 2021 are as follows:  
(cont’d)

 GROUP LEVEL

 Non-Executive Directors

No Name
Fees

RM
Allowance

RM
Total

RM

1. Y.A.M Dato’ Seri Tengku Baharuddin Ibni 

Billah Shah 11,008 305,008

2. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin 288,000 28,800 316,800

3. Leong Fook Heng 20,800 68,800

Ho Fook Meng 21,600 69,600

5. Harison Binti Yusoff

Total 726,000 88,608 814,608

 GROUP LEVEL

 Managing Director and Executive Directors

No Name
Fee
RM

Salaries
RM

Bonus
RM

EPF
RM

in Kind
RM

Total
RM

1. Dato’ Sri Ho Kam Choy
Group Managing 
Director 36,000 720,000 60,000 93,630 2,097 911,727

2. Capt Tony Tan Han 
(Chen Han)
Executive Director - - 50,169 -

3. Ho Hung Ming
Alternate Director to 
Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin 
Mohd Zinin - 192,000 16,000 1,173

Total 36,000 1,503,042 76,000 168,675 3,270 1,786,987
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS  (cont’d)

Part 3 : Remuneration  (cont’d)

3.5 The Board applies Practice 8.1 of the MCCG to disclose Directors’ remuneration on named 
basis for individual Directors with detailed remuneration breakdown.  (cont’d)

3.5.2 Pursuant to Practice 8.2 of the MCCG, the Key Senior Management’s total remuneration 
inclusive of salary, bonus and other emoluments in bands of RM50,000.00 are disclosed 
as follows:

Range of Remuneration per annum (RM) Key Senior Management

RM 50,000 and below -

RM 50,001 - RM 100,000 -

3

-

2

-

remuneration component, including salary, bonus, benef its in-kind and other 
emoluments in bands of RM50,000 as the Board believes that such disclosure on 
a named basis may be detrimental to the Company’s interests as this may cause 
unnecessary unease among senior management personnel should they compare 
their remuneration against those listed in the Annual Report. Moreover, our caliber 
employees may be subject to poaching by rival companies.

 As an alternative, the Board is of the view that the disclosure of the remuneration paid 

bands of RM50,000.00 is adequate.

PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT

Part 1 :  Audit Committee (“AC”)

1.1 Chairman of AC

 The Chairman of the AC is not the Chairman of the Board. The Company complied with 
Practice 9.1 of the Code which stipulated that the Chairman of the AC is not the Chairman of 
the Board. The AC is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director, Leong Fook Heng 
who is not the Chairman of the Board.

1.2 Former Key Audit Partner

 The Company had adopted an External Auditor’s Assessment Policy which stated that a 
former key audit partner to observe a cooling-off period of at least two years before being 
appointed as a member of the AC.
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT  (cont’d)

Part 1 :  Audit Committee (“AC”)  (cont’d)

1.3 External Auditors

 The AC also met with the External Auditors without the presence of the management and 

External Auditors wished to bring up to the attention of the AC. 

 The AC has adopted an External Auditors Assessment Policy which lays down the criteria 
to be considered in the selection, appointment and re-appointment of the External 

they are, and have been, professionally independent throughout the conduct of the audit 
engagement in conformity with all regulatory requirements and practices.

 The assessment is conducted on a yearly basis by the AC, using the prescribed External 
Auditors Evaluation Form, with emphasis of evaluation based on competence, adequacy of 
experience and resources, quality of the audit performances, independence and objectivity 
of the External Auditors, reasonableness of audit fees and comparison of audit and non-audit 
fees.

1.4 Financial Literacy of AC Member

 The AC comprises three (3) members, majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive 

their duties and discharge their responsibilities. 

 Additionally, the AC Chairman, Leong Fook Heng has vast experience and skills in accounting 

approval. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

 The duties and responsibilities of the AC which are guided by its terms of reference, is 
available at the Company’s corporate website at www.straits-energyresources.com. 

 The full details of the composition, attendance of each member of the AC at meetings and 

AC on pages 28 to 33 of this Annual Report.

Part 2 : Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

2.1
risk management and internal control system as well as reviewing its adequacy and 
effectiveness. The governance structure that is in place provides reasonable assurance of 
the effectiveness of the Group’s business operations and risk management to safeguard 
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets as well as to ensure its sustainability.

2.2
the BRCC in order to manage the overall risk exposure of the Group. The BRCC ensures that 
the risk management is embedded in the Group’s business operations by continuously 
reviewing the risk management policies and procedures.

2.3 The Board is assisted by the BRCC and AC for managing and overseeing the risk 
management and internal control systems respectively of the Group.
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT  (cont’d)

Part 2 : Risk Management and Internal Control Framework  (cont’d)

2.4 The BRCC is currently chaired by a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director with two (2) 
other members, both of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. 

 The BRCC assists the Board to oversee the risk management matters relating to the activities 
of the Group. The BRCC reviews the risk management framework and processes to ensure 
that they remain relevant for use and monitors the effectiveness of risk treatment/mitigation 
action plans for the management and control of the key risks. 

 The Company continues to maintain and review its internal control procedures to ensure, as 
far as possible, the protection of its assets and its shareholders’ investments. 

2.5 Internal Audit Function

 The internal audit function of the Group is outsourced to an independent professional 

 The Internal Auditors report directly to the AC. Internal audit reports are presented, together 

action plans, to the AC on a quarterly basis. 

review is provided in the AC Report as set out on page 28 to 33 of this Annual Report.

 Details of the internal audit function together with the Group’s state of risk management 
and internal control systems are reported in the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control set out in this Annual Report from page 51 to 56 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C : INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIPS WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

Part 1 : Engagement with Stakeholders

1.1 The Board believes that clear and consistent communication encourages better appreciation 
of the activities and further allows the business and its prospects to be better understood 
and evaluated by the shareholders.

1.2

Group’s performance.

1.3 The Board acknowledges the importance of being accountable to the shareholders and the 
investors via a direct and effective line of communication. As such, the Group always ensures 

developments and announcements of the Group via the BURSA LINK, the Company’s Annual 
Reports and other circulars to shareholders and where appropriate, ad hoc press statements 
which serve as the principal channel in keeping the shareholders and the investing public 

progress throughout the year.
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PRINCIPLE C : INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIPS WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS  (cont’d)

Part 1 : Engagement with Stakeholders  (cont’d)

1.4 The Board has established a dedicated section for corporate information on the Company’s 
website (www.straits-energyresources.com) where information on the Company’s 

be accessed. It also contains all announcements made to Bursa Securities as well as the 
contact details of designated person to address any queries.

1.5

Part 2 : Conduct of General Meetings

2.1 The AGM is the annual forum for shareholders’ engagement and communication. Notice of 
th

time for our shareholders to plan for their attendance and if required, lodge their proxy form.

2.2 th

January 2022 were conducted virtually through live streaming via Remote Participation 
and Voting (“RPV”) facilities and afforded an opportunity to our shareholders, particularly 
individuals not residing in the Klang Valley, to participate and vote at our AGM and EGM 
respectively (including submitting questions directly to our Board both prior to and during 
the AGM). 

 All our Board members including our Group MD and Senior Management Team attended 
the AGM and EGM online and responded to questions raised by shareholders.

 Voting at the AGM and EGM was carried out by way of e-polling. Our Company appointed 
its share registrar, Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd as poll administrator to 
conduct the poll while Asia Securities Sdn Bhd was appointed as an independent scrutineer 
to verify the poll results.

are driven by the prevalent COVID-19 pandemic and our objective to ensure the safety of 
all individuals, in accordance with the latest Guidance on the Conduct of General Meetings 
by Listed Issuers issued by the Securities Commission. We also wish to comply with the 
standard operating procedures issued by Majlis Keselamatan Negara (“MKN”).

 This statement was made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 22 
April 2022.
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accordance with the applicable Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 
2016 (“CA 2016”) in Malaysia. 

are prepared with reasonable accuracy from the accounting records of the Group so as to give a true and 

applied appropriate and relevant accounting policies consistently and in accordance with applicable 

statements are prepared on a going concern basis and the Directors have ensured that proper accounting 

Group are released to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad in a timely manner in order to keep our investing 
public informed of the Group’s latest performance and developments.

The Board has overall responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the Group and for the implementation and continued operation of adequate accounting and 
internal control systems for the prevention, detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 22 April 2022.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY DIRECTORS
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT & 
INTERNAL CONTROL

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Straits Energy Resources Berhad (formerly known as Straits Inter 
Logistics Berhad) (“Straits” or “the Company”) is pleased to present the Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control (“SORMIC”) for the Financial Year Ended (“FYE”) 31 December 2021 made in 
compliance with paragraph 15.26 (b) of the ACE Market Listing Requirements (“AMLR”) and guided by 
the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers and 
Practices 10.1 and 10.2 of the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) 2021 (Updated as at 28 
April 2021).

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk 

and compliance aspects but also in terms of operations as well. This covers the establishment of the risk 
appetite, reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the current risk management framework and 
internal control system based on the Group’s corporate objectives, strategies and nature of the Group’s 
business in the changing business environment.

The Board is mindful of the fact that the system of internal control is designed to manage rather than 
to eliminate all risks that could impede the achievement of the Group’s business objectives. Therefore, 
the internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss.

The Board delegates to the Board Risk & Compliance Committee (“BRCC”) and Audit Committee (“AC”) 
the task to identify and assess the risks faced by the Group, and thereafter design and implement 
appropriate internal controls to mitigate and address those risks.

including review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control 
system to ensure that appropriate measures are carried out by the Management to obtain the level of 
assurance required by the Board.

The BRCC’s authority and duties are governed by its Terms of Reference (“TOR”), which available on the 
Company’s corporate website at www.straits-energyresources.com. 

The members of the BRCC comprise a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors as follows:
 

No Name of Directors Designation 

1. Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman

2. Leong Fook Heng 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member

3. Ho Fook Meng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member

 
There were eleven (11) BRCC meetings held during the FYE 31 December 2021 to discuss key risks and the 
relevant mitigating controls.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing key risks in the context of its 
business objectives. These processes are embedded within the Group’s overall business operations and 
guided by operational manuals and policies and procedures.

The Group has adopted a Risk Management Framework (“Framework”) that provides a comprehensive 
approach for the Group to adopt in order to identify and manage risks which could be prevented, to 
effectively achieve its business goals and strategies. 

The Group also adopts the Enterprise Risk Management Policy (“ERM Policy”) which is designed to 
manage risks in an integrated, systematic and consistent manner. The risk assessment methodology 
adopted by the Group, which is guided by the globally accepted standard for risk management i.e. 
International Risk Management Standard ISO 31000:2018 Action Plans. In 2020, the ERM policy was 
reviewed and changed from current key risk areas to sources of risks.

The Corporate Risk Register developed is continuously updated by Key Senior Management and Heads of 

Committee (“RMC”) comprising of members of the Management team meets on bi-annual basis to 
review, identify and assess key risks facing the Group within the boundaries set by the ERM Policy, prior to 
escalation to the BRCC.

Supporting the RMC in its roles are the Risk Management Reporting Satellite who are representatives 
from the respective sections of the Group and business units, who will be responsible for identifying, 
evaluating, managing and monitoring key risks. The responsibility for day-to-day risk management resides 
with the Management of each function/business unit where they are the risk owners and are accountable 

up action plans to manage and mitigate the risks to be completed within an agreed timeframe.

as the likelihood of occurrence. The risk level is rated as low, medium or high accordingly.

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to pose challenges to the global business environment since its 
outbreak in March 2020, the economy outlook remains highly uncertain with the continuous mutation of 
the COVID-19 virus.

continue operating and concurrently complying with the Standard Operating Procedures (“SOPs”) to 
ensure the safety and wellness of its employees and also to ensure the continuous growth and smooth 
execution of its expansion programs.

prevention of virus infection and vaccination are being complied.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT & 
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

and managed are as follows:-

carried out through brainstorming and discussion

 Risks are managed through formulation of risks strategies

 Risk monitoring 

Management acknowledges that they are responsible for implementing the processes for identifying, 
evaluating, monitoring and reporting risks and for taking appropriate and timely corrective or mitigating 
actions as needed. Management has further assured the Board that the Group’s risk management and 
internal control systems are operating adequately and effectively in all material aspects, based on the risk 
management model adopted by the Group.

the BRCC for their deliberation. The outcome of the BRCC meetings are reported to the Board meeting. 

At the Board level, the Board deliberated strategic business issues and action plans in its periodic board 
meetings and noted various management review meetings covering status of action plans held at the 
management level. By doing so, the Board ensures that their decisions are communicated, understood 
and managed effectively by management.

KEY FEATURES OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Group’s Internal Control Framework guides the company towards developing an effective and 

making and governance of the Group. 

The key elements of the Group’s system of internal control, policies and procedures that are in place are as 
follows:

segregation of duties.

2. Delegation and separation of responsibilities between the Board and management and the 
establishment of various Board Committees and the presence of independent directors to 

the approving limits that have been assigned and delegated to each approving authority within 
the Group. The limits of authority are reviewed periodically and updated in line with changes in the 

operating budget including capital and manpower budgets which are reviewed and approved by the 
Board.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT & 
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KEY FEATURES OF INTERNAL CONTROL  (cont’d)

5. Policies and procedures of operating units and functional divisions are established, documented and 
updated regularly to ensure compliance with internal controls and relevant laws and regulations, as 
well as meeting the changing business environment.

recommendations, if any, proposed by the Internal Auditors.

7. Internal audit function includes performing regular reviews of business processes to assess the 

recommendations.

8. Monitoring of actual results against budget and previous year performance (quarterly) with detailed 
explanation on material variances and their corrective measures undertaken.

9. The Board had in November 2021, reviewed and approved the amended Anti-Bribery and Corruption 
(“ABC”) Policy and Whistleblowing Policy of the Group. The amendments are to strengthen the Anti-
Corruption Policies and Procedures on provision of Gifts, Entertainment and Hospitality (“GEH”). This 
implementation is to uphold good corporate governance and to prevent, detect and respond to 
bribery and corruption risks.

10. The External Auditors independently test certain internal controls as part of their audit of the 

takes appropriate action on these internal control recommendations.

11. Human Resource Management and Development

 The Group has established an Employee Handbook for its employees which aims to provide general 

as a communication guideline and reference for the Company to its employees in promoting a 
harmonious, safe and healthy work environment and provide employees with a positive experience 
throughout their employment with Straits Group.

 The Employee Handbook contains amongst others:-

  General conditions of Employment
  Employee Code of Ethics and Conduct
 

12. Related party transactions are disclosed, reviewed and monitored by the Board on a periodic basis.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Axcelasia Sdn. Bhd (“Axcelasia”). The Internal Audit (“IA”) Function is carried out based on the Outsourced 
Internal Auditor’s own internal audit approach, which is closely consistent with the International 
Professional Practice Framework (“IPPF”) of the Institute of the International Auditors. 

governance processes in the Group, through regular reviews and appraisals conducted by Axcelasia, which 
reports directly to the AC.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION  (cont’d)

The AC determines the adequacy of the scope, function and resources of the internal audit function as 
well as the competency and independence of the Outsourced Internal Auditor.

During the year, the IA has carried out audits on key operating units within the Group according to the 
risk based annual audit plan approved by the AC. The IA function uses a risk-based approach to determine 
the priorities of IA activities, consistent with the strategies of the Group. 

Improvement measures are recommended to strengthen controls. IA reports are presented to the AC 

system of internal controls.

Follow-up reviews on previous audit recommendations are performed to assess the status of 
implementation and the results of such reviews are reported to the AC on a regular basis as well as any 
residual risks assessment after follow-up closures.

Details of the IA function activities undertaken during the FYE 2021 are provided in the AC Report on page 
28 to page 33 of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND ASSURANCE

The Group Managing Director (“Group MD”), Executive Directors, Chief Executives and Management are 
responsible to the Board for :-

1. Identifying risks relevant to the business of the Group’s objectives and strategies;
2. Designing, implementing, maintaining sound systems of risk management, and monitoring risk 

management action plan in accordance with the Group’s risk appetite and objectives;
3. Assuring the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal control systems; and

could affect the Group’s achievement of its objective, strategies, and performance.

BOARD ASSESSMENT

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness, adequacy, and integrity of the system of risk management 

internal control. Management continues to take measures to strengthen the control environment.

The Board has received assurance from the Group MD and Financial Controller that the Group’s risk 

aspects.

The Board remains committed to ensuring that appropriate initiatives and active measures are taken to 
enhance the system of internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
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REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

As required by paragraph 15.23 of the AMLR, the External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control. Their limited assurance review was performed in accordance with 
Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3 issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Based on their review, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the statement 
intended to be included in the Annual Report of the Group, in all material respects:

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, or

b) is factually inaccurate.

This Statement was approved by the Board on 22 April 2022.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

It is with great pleasure we present Straits Energy Resources Berhad’s (formerly known as Straits Inter 
Logistics Berhad) [“Straits” or “the Group”] Annual Sustainability Statement which serves to tell the story 
of how the Group has contributed towards managing our Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) 
values in the reporting period.

Our Sustainability Report 2021 is in accordance with Bursa Malaysia’s requirements and its Sustainability 
Reporting Guidelines.

Aligning with the Government’s focus towards ESG, the Group continues to carry and expand its business 
operations in a sustainable and responsible manner. The Group focuses on sustainability principles when 
formulating and implementing business strategies, decision makings and operational executions to 
achieve its goals. 

Through this Sustainability Statement, the Group provides its stakeholders a better understanding of its 
strategic approach to create sustainable long-term value for the Group as well as our stakeholders.

Over the past two years, the world has experienced unimaginable hardships and losses due to the 

Despite the unprecedented challenges brought about by the pandemic, we have remained resolute 

customers’ needs.

PERIOD & SCOPE OF REPORTING

on the main business activity of the Group.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our Sustainability Management Committee (“SMC”) which comprises key management personnel with 
direct reporting to the Group Managing Director (“Group MD”) is to provide leadership and direction for 
the implementation of sustainability initiatives and reporting throughout the Group.

SMC is responsible for the development of management action plans towards achieving the Group’s 

economic, environmental and social matters and also other areas of concerns with the ultimate aim of 
achieving the goals of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

our sustainability activities on track with our goal to achieve stakeholders’ expectations while reinforcing 
our relationships with them.

concerns. 
 
The Company carries out the following engagements with the respective stakeholders where 
communication methods are regularly assessed through information requests to ensure they are 
transparent and effective.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
cont’d

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT  (cont’d)

Stakeholder Group Engagement Methods Stakeholders’ Concerns 

Employees  Business Unit Meetings
 Management & Operational 

Meetings
 Informal periodic departmental 

meetings
 Training programmes
 Whistle-blowing channel
 Company Dinners & Functions
 e-Bulletin board, newsletter
 Annual Performance appraisal

 Work life balance
 Safe and conducive workplace
 Career enhancements
 Job security
 Fair HR policies and practices
 Equitable treatment  irrespective 

of gender, age, ethnicity, 
nationality or religion 

Client/Customers  Site visit
 One-to-one meeting
 Social media engagement
 Marketing events + customer 

promotions 
 Annual Survey & Feedback
 Complaints channel
 Regular Audits
 Customer feedback via customer 

satisfaction survey 
 Website, social media

 Market outlook 
 Product Quality & Risk
 Protection of customer privacy
 Product risk 
 Service quality management
 Business continuity
 Customer satisfaction

Suppliers/Contractors / 
Vendors

 Supplier assessment review and 
performance 

 Tendering process 
 Supplier/Vendor Registration
 Business Meetings
 Site Visits

 Fair procurement practices
 Transparent Vendor Selection 

Process
 Prompt Payment schedule
 Sustainable supply chain 

management
 Maintaining good relationship

Shareholders or 
Investors

 Annual General Meetings

and other material matters on 
Bursa Malaysia’s platform 

 Annual Report
 Press releases 
 Company’s website

 Business risks 
 Corporate Governance 
 Accurate and timely disclosure
 Future direction
 Financial Performance
 Corporate governance
 Ethical business conduct
 Dividend

Regulatory Authorities  Active participation in industry 
Associations

 Meetings with Government 
Agencies

 Regular Audits & Inspections
 Updating and renewal of permits & 

license

compliance
 Timely disclosure of corporate and 

 Compliance with laws and 
regulations

 Approvals and permits  Standards 

Communities  Community engagement 
programmes 

 Internship programme
 CSR Activities

 Livelihood 
 Community wellbeing 
 Employment opportunity
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
cont’d

KEY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS

1. Environmental Sustainability

 The effective and eff icient management of resources is a key component for environmental 
sustainability and protecting our natural environment and ecological systems.

 Our commitment to safeguarding the environment underpins the way we work every day. We 
strive to manage our environmental impacts to remain in full compliance with regulations. We are 
mindful of our impact in relation to biodiversity, climate change, energy use, air emissions and waste 
management. 

 We devote ourselves to preventing pollution, energy savings and reducing carbon, and protecting 
the earth by putting in place strict standards and operation procedures in every area of 
environmental protection and pollution prevention. 

 A range of pollution risks are associated with our activities. These include risks related to planned and 
unplanned discharges and waste management. We strive to continually operate in a safe manner to 
avoid spills, leaks or accidental discharges of polluting materials.

environmental laws and regulations, international standards and voluntary commitments.

 We are committed to complying with all environmental laws and regulations and therefore adhere to 
all monitoring requirements which are part of our Environment Impact Assessment (“EIA”), MARPOL 
(International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships) , licenses and permits.

 Being in the maritime and transport industry, we ensure all our vessels and lorries are compliant 
with the statutory requirements related to Marine Pollutions Regulation and Road Transport 
Department’s Regulations respectively.

 There was no incident of non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations and we have not 

2. Business Performance

 We are aware that the value created by the Group has an impact on the well-being of the economy.

Straits not only manage to adapt and sustain its business throughout but also thrived in overcoming 
the challenging environment. 

 We are pleased to announce that Straits had recorded a higher revenue in FY2021 despite the 
business shutdown both locally and regionally. It is worthwhile to note that the Group has made 

on pages 8 to 13 of this Annual Report.

3. Customer Satisfaction 

 We place strong emphasis on delivering quality services that consistently met our customers’ 
satisfaction.

 Additionally, we regularly seek feedback from our customers to obtain deep understanding of their 
needs, as we strive to improve our market position and competitiveness. We also promote a culture 
of open communication, trust and reliability to build strong relationships with our customers.
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KEY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS  (cont’d)

3. Customer Satisfaction  (cont’d)

 Knowing exactly our customers’ expectation will assist us in improving our bottom line and 
strengthening our reputation for the long term and these feedbacks provide insights in customer 
expectations that enable us to develop and deliver better products and services.

 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and our commitment to the safety and health of our people and 
community at large, we have shelved customer engagement events until a more appropriate time.

 We are still accessible via our website and we welcome any communication with our customers as 
we believe they are the key drivers behind our success.

4. Corporate Governance

 Corporate governance is essential to the overall sustainability of our Group. It ensures each and every 
element of the Group operates as it should and all our stakeholders are treated fairly and justly in 
their dealings with us.

 We aspire to be transparent and conduct our business in an ethical and principled way to achieve 
long-term success and sustainable growth as well as to ensure trust amongst shareholders and 
investors. 

 Strengthening Anti-Corruption and Corporate Integrity 

underpinned by the leadership’s commitment towards accountability, transparency and corporate 
integrity, non-discrimination and equal opportunity based on merit. 

 In FY2021, the policy has been cascaded to Straits value chain towards further embedding the 
anti-corruption stance among suppliers, vendors, contractors and business partners. All vendor 
documentation come with anti-corruption clauses that stipulates what is deemed to be as 
unacceptable or corrupt practices and also the penalties that vendors face, including dismissal or 
being reported to the legal authorities if necessary.

 Business Conduct

 The combination of ethical business conduct and sound corporate governance are fundamental to 
the achievement of our objectives to expand our business and enhance stakeholders’ value. It is the 
Group’s policy to conduct business in a fair, honest and transparent manner.

5. Occupational Safety and Health at the Workplace

 Occupational safety and health (“OSH”) at the workplace have always been a prime consideration for 
Straits. The Company strictly complies with the relevant legislation and are proud to note that we are 

Quality Management Systems (“QMS”) having met the requirements and undergo surveillance audits 

 The Group also strictly abides with the statutory rules and requirements relating to Health, Safety 
and Environment protection which include those under IMO and International Safety Management 
(“ISM”) Code and Health, Safety & Environment Management System (“HSEMS”). 

cater a safe work environment for our workforce. Straits is attentive in creating a safe and healthy 
workplace by eliminating work-related injuries and illness.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
cont’d
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KEY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS  (cont’d)

5. Occupational Safety and Health at the Workplace  (cont’d)

targets in achieving and sustaining: 

  The safe and healthy working environment
  The prevention and elimination of work-related injuries and illness
  The prevention of pollution to the environment from our activities 
  The compliance with legal and other requirements related to health, safety and environment

to our onshore and offshore personnel.

 The following precautions and measures were introduced to mitigate the risk:-

 Use of masks
 Social distancing markers everywhere. Ensure physical separation i.e. minimum distance of one 

meter
 Performing temperature checking
 Work from Home (“WFH”) for some employees

 Enhanced cleaning

 Restrict visitors unless necessary

6. Suppliers and Vendors

 Supplier and vendors are selected through selection and tender processes from time to time. 

procurement department is responsible of all tendering processes and the selection of sub-

of service criterions.

 Moving forward, we are committed to assessing not just against criteria such as quality of services, 
technical expertise and Health, Safety, Security and Environment (“HSSE”) but also the environmental 
impacts from our suppliers’ operations as a way of enhancing the overall assessment process and 
improving the sustainability of our supply chain.

7. Human Capital 

 Employee’s performance, commitment and loyalty to the job are critical not only in achieving the 
Group’s vision and mission, but also for its long-term survival and sustainability. 

 The Group maintains a workplace environment that provides clear and equitable paths for talent 

merit.

attracting talent and retaining employees. At the same time, the Group appreciates the motivational 

package comprising a balance of monetary and non-monetary rewards to its employees.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
cont’d
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KEY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS  (cont’d)

7. Human Capital  (cont’d)

 At present, there remains a disproportion in term of gender parity with male employees still 
constituting a large composition of the workforce. This is expected as our business nature, in 
particular for offshore operations, typically requires more labor-intensive work demands, which are 
customarily not preferred by many women. 

 However, both men and women are accorded equal opportunity to apply to any available job 
position with appointment based purely on merit. The disproportion between male and female 

 At Straits, we also expose our team to numerous learning opportunities and enriching their work 
experiences and we continue to develop their professional competence and capabilities towards 
improving job performance and employee morale and satisfaction.

8. The Importance of Community

 The Group’s commitment to promoting equitable access to professional and life opportunities 
extends beyond its employees to include the communities within which it operates, especially the 
vulnerable. 

 Straits values its role in working with the local communities and networking as we believe 
that engaging with communities is essential to creating sustainable impacts and improve our 

 As we look to the future, we strive to enhance our stakeholders’ value, grow our business 

associate with. 

 This Statement has been approved by the Board on 22 April 2022.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
cont’d
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1. UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM CORPORATE PROPOSALS

 a) The Company had on 1 March 2021 announced the completion of the private placement of a 

nearest thousand) pursuant to Section 75 & 76 of the Companies Act 2016 (“Private Placement 
1”).

as follows:-

Purpose

Proposed 
Utilization 

RM’000

Actual 
Utilization 

RM’000

Intended 
Timeframe For 

Utilization

Cash consideration for the acquisition of 
Tumpuan Megah Development Sdn Bhd

11,715 11,715 Fully utilised

Working capital 8,386 8,386 Fully utilised

Defray estimated expenses 330 330 Fully utilised

TOTAL 20,431 20,431

 b)

the nearest thousand) pursuant to Rule 6.06 of ACE Market Listing Requirements (“Private 
Placement 2”).

as follows:-

Purpose

Proposed 
Utilization 

RM’000

Actual 
Utilization 

RM’000

Intended 
Timeframe For 

Utilization

Cash consideration of the acquisition of Sinar 
Maju Logistik Sdn Bhd

13,790 13,790 Fully utilised

TOTAL 13,790 13,790

 The audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the external auditors, Messrs. Moore Stephens 

Financial Year Ended (“FYE”) 31 December 2021 are as follows:-

Company
RM

Group
RM

Audit Fees 58,000 381,771

Non-Audit Fees 85,750 85,750

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
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3. MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS OR CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE WHO IS NOT A DIRECTOR 

year:

  The Conditional Share Sale Agreement (“SSA”) dated 25 October 2021 entered into between 
the Company and Tan Sri Mohd Bakri Bin Mohd Zinin (“Tan Sri Mohd Bakri” or “Vendor”) 
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company) for the acquisition of 270,000 
shares, representing 90% equity interest in Sinar Maju Logistik Sdn Bhd (“Sinar Maju”) from 

cash (“Proposed Acquisition”). Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, Sinar Maju will 
become a 90%-owned subsidiary of the Company. For Shareholders’ information, the Proposed 
Acquisition was completed on 1 April 2022.

  Pursuant to the SSA, the Vendor granted to Straits the Call Option (“Proposed Call Option”) for 
Straits to acquire all the Call Options Shares in a single transaction, representing the remaining 

entirely via cash by serving the Call Option Notice to the Vendor. For Shareholders’ information, 
the Call Option may be exercised at any time during a period of 30 months commencing from 
the completion of the Proposed Acquisition. Upon the exercise and completion of the Proposed 
Call Option, Sinar Maju will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Straits.

4. CONTRACT RELATING TO LOANS

 There were no contracts relating to loans by the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interest 
of Directors’ and major shareholders during the FYE 31 December 2021.

 The Company had obtained mandate from its shareholders in respect of recurrent related party 
transactions of a revenue and/or trading nature (“RRPTs”) (“RRPT Mandate”) at the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM

 Details of the RRPTs are disclosed in Note 27 to the Audited Financial Statements in this Annual 
Report. The RRPT Mandate will lapse at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(“25th AGM”) unless such authority is renewed by a resolution passed at the 25th AGM. Accordingly, the 
Company will be seeking its shareholders’ approval to renew the RRPT Mandate at the 25th AGM.

6. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”)

 The Company did not issue any ESOS during the FYE 31 December 2021.

7. MATERIAL PROPERTIES 

 The Company and its subsidiaries presently do not own any properties.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
cont’d
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ISSUANCE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

* Being a Director of one or more subsidiaries

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
cont’d



68

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 

 Number of Ordinary Shares 

 As at 
 Bought  Sold 

As at

 Unit  Unit  Unit  Unit 

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Direct interest

Indirect interest

 Number of Warrants over Ordinary Shares 

 As at 

 Unit 
Bought 

 Unit 
 Sold 
 Unit 

As at

 Unit 

Warrants over Ordinary Shares  
of the Company

Direct interest

Indirect interest

^^  deemed interest by virtue of her spouse direct shareholdings in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

 Company  Subsidiaries 

 RM  RM 
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Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Our audit performed and responses thereon
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Our audit performed and responses thereon

subsequent settlement  and collective assessment 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Other Matter
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 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Revenue

Other income

operations

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

attributable to:

Total comprehensive income 
for the year attributable to:

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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 Group  Company

Note RM RM RM RM

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Current assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Total Assets

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Reserves

Total equity attributable to Owners 
of the Company

Total Equity

Non-current liabilities

Term loan

Current liabilities

Term loan

 

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
cont’d
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 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities

losses on trade receivables

Dividend income

associate

credit losses on trade receivables

Changes in working capital:

Receivables

operations

activities

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Cash Flows from Investing 
Activities

subsidiaries

associate

Cash Flows from Financing 
Activities

Directors

interest

 

controlling interest

liabilities

activities

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
cont’d
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 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Cash and cash equivalents at end 

 Group  Company

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
cont’d
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 Amount 
 Due to an 
 Associate 

 Amounts 
 Due to 

 Directors 

 Tawarruq 
 Working 

Capital 
 Financing-i 

 
 Lease 

 Liabilities 

Vendor
 Financing 
 Liabilities 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Group

Drawdown

 

translation reserve

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
cont’d
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 Amount Due 
  to an 

Associate 
 Amounts Due 

  to Directors 

 Amount Due 
 to a 

Subsidiary 
 Lease 

 Liabilities 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Company

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
cont’d



92

 Group  Company 

 RM  RM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
cont’d



93

 (a) Statement of compliance
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94

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 (a) Statement of compliance (cont’d)

  (ii) Accounting pronouncements that are issued but not yet effective and have not been 
early adopted

 

 

 (b) Basis of measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 (c) Functional and presentation currency

  (i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

  (ii) Capitalisation of dry-docking expenditures

 allows such components to be 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

  (iii) Impairment of goodwill 

  (vi) Carrying value of investments in subsidiaries

  (vii) Right-of-use assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 (a) Basis of Consolidation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (a) Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (a) Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)

  

  

 
  

  Transactions eliminated on consolidation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (b) Foreign Currency

  (i) Foreign currency transactions

  (ii) Foreign Operations Denominated in Functional Currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

   

   

   

 (c) Revenue Recognition and Other Income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (c) Revenue Recognition and Other Income (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (e) Income Tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (f) Leases

 (g) Earnings Per Share
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (h) Goodwill 

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment

  (i) Recognition and measurement

  (ii) Subsequent costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

  (iii) Depreciation

management agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (k) Inventories

 (l) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 (m) Financial Instruments

  (i) Initial recognition and measurement 

  (ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (m) Financial Instruments (cont’d)

  (ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (cont’d)

   

   Amortised cost

  (iii) Offsetting 

  (iv) Financial guarantee contracts 

   
   

Revenue from 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (m) Financial Instruments (cont’d)

  (vi) Derecognition 

 (n) Impairment 

  (i) Financial assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (n) Impairment (cont’d)

  (i) Financial assets (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (n) Impairment (cont’d)

  (i) Financial assets (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (n) Impairment (cont’d)

 (o) Equity Instrument

  

 (p) Warrants Reserves

 (q) Operating Segments

 (r) Provisions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 (s) Contingencies

 (t) Borrowing Costs

 (u) Fair Value Measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

water services

management services

Dividend income

       

 Oil trading

Oil (

 Timing of recognition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Oil bunkering services

 Timing of recognition

 Fresh water services

 Inland transportation services

 Timing of recognition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Ship management services

 Port operation and facility management services

 Timing of recognition

 Chartering services

 Management fee

 Dividend income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 
losses on trade receivables

Dividend income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

credit loss on trade receivables

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Staff costs

contribution plan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Directors’ remunerations

contribution plan

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Income tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

purposes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 

 Group

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

O
il 

Ta
nk

er
s 

Dr
y-

do
ck

in
g

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

Sh
ip

pi
ng

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

 M
ac

hi
ne

ry
 

Fu
rn

itu
re

, 
Fi

tt
in

gs
, 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
 C

om
pu

te
rs

  R
en

ov
at

io
n 

 C
em

en
t 

Ta
nk

er
s 

 M
ot

or
 

Ve
hi

cl
es

  
Co

nt
ai

ne
r 

 S
ta

ck
er

s 

As
se

ts
 

un
de

r 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Le

as
e 

of
 

Pr
em

ise
s 

 T
ot

al
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

 R
M

 
 R

M
 

Gr
ou

p 

Co
st co

nt
ra

ct

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

co
nt

ra
ct

Ne
t c

ar
ry

in
g 

am
ou

nt



123

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Computers 

Furniture, 
Fittings,  

Equipment  Renovation 
Motor 

Vehicle 
Lease of 

Premises  Total 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Company

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Total additions

arrangement

shareholders

 Group

 RM  RM 

Renovation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)
 

 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

assets

liabilities

lease rental and low value 
assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Company

 RM  RM 

Disposal

Name
Country of 

Incorporation Principal Activities

Effective 
equity interest

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

Name
Country of 

Incorporation Principal Activities

Effective 
equity interest

 
services

based products

services

services

services

Dormant

#

services

Subsidiaries of TMD

services

services

services

services
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

Name
Country of 

Incorporation Principal Activities

Effective 
equity interest

Subsidiaries of TMD (cont’d)

services

services 

services

Subsidiaries of SMF

services

services

services

services

services

services

services

Subsidiaries of SAT

spare parts and service station 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

Name
Country of 

Incorporation Principal Activities

Effective 
equity interest

Subsidiaries of SPM

management services

Subsidiaries of FML

 

Subsidiaries of VICTORIA

#

#

Subsidiary of SMS

general cleaning and 

Subsidiaries of STS

#
Telecommunication and 

 ^

 ^^

 #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 

 

 Group 

 RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

  (cont’d)

 

 As at 

 RM 

Deposits

Goodwill arising on acquisition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

  (cont’d)

 

 Group 

 RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

  (cont’d)

 Payment Date  RM  USD 

RM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

  (cont’d)

 Impairment review of investments in subsidiaries 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Subsidiaries of the Group that have NCI

NCI 
percentage of 

ownership and 
voting interest 

allocated to 
NCI (RM)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

At cost

Unquoted shares

Derecognition

Share of post-acquisition reserve

Derecognition

Net carrying amount

Name of associate
Country of 

Incorporation Principal Activities

Effective 
equity interest

commenced operations

based products
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 

 Group  Company 

 RM  RM 

Total derecognition proceed

 BIG  Banle  FML 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Assets and liabilities

December

Results

Revenue
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group

 RM  RM 

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount at the end of the 

 Group

 RM  RM 

Gross amount

Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group

 RM  RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Group

 RM  RM 

At cost:

 Group

 RM  RM 

Reversal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Other receivables

losses

Deposits
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Company

 RM  RM 



147

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group and Company  Group and Company 

 Number of 
 Ordinary Shares  Amount 

 Units  Units  RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:

 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Non-distributable:

 

Attributable to:

       



148

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

Lease of 
Premises 

 Motor 
Vehicles  Total 

Group  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum lease payments:

Present value of lease liabilities:

Representing by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d) 

Lease of 
Premises 

 Motor 
Vehicles  Total 

Group (cont’d)  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum lease payments:

Present value of lease liabilities:

Representing by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d) 

Lease of 
Premises 

 Motor 
Vehicles  Total 

Company  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum lease payments:

Present value of lease liabilities:

Representing by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d) 

Lease of 
Premises 

 Motor 
Vehicles  Total 

Company  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum lease payments:

Present value of lease liabilities:

Representing by:

 Group

 RM  RM 

Secured
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d) 

 Group

 RM  RM 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Non-current

Current
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Note a
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Note a  (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Note a  (cont’d)

 SMF 
Begonia 

Ltd 

 SMF 
Ixora 

Ltd 

 SMF 
Eden 

Ltd 

 SMF 
Beluga 

Ltd  Total 

Group  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum payments:

charges

Present value of 

payables

Representing by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 Note a  (cont’d)

SMF 
Begonia 

Ltd 

SMF 
Ixora 

Ltd 

SMF 
Eden 

Ltd  Total 

Group (cont’d)  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Minimum payments:

payables

Representing by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Group 

 RM 

 

 

 RM  RM 

Group

Transactions with associates

Transactions with related parties

   



159

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d)

 RM  RM 

Group (cont’d)

Directors

Company

Transactions with associates

Director

Transactions with subsidiaries

Dividend received
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

 Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 

services

 
services

services

management services

Others
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 Group 

 RM  RM 

 
trade receivables

 Group 

 RM  RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 Group 

 RM  RM 

Total assets

 Group 

 RM  RM 

 Group 

 RM  RM 

Total liabilities

 Group 

 RM  RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 Geographical segments

 

 External Revenue 

 RM  RM  Segment 

 Categories of Financial Instruments

 

 (i) Credit risk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (i) Credit risk (cont’d)

  Trade receivables
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (i) Credit risk (cont’d)

  Trade receivables (cont’d)

  

 Gross 
 Loss  

 Allowances  Net 

 RM  RM  RM 

Group

Credit impaired
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (i) Credit risk (cont’d)

  Trade receivables (cont’d)

  

 Gross 
 Loss  

 Allowances  Net 

 RM  RM  RM 

Group (cont’d)

Credit impaired

  

  Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

  Receivables that are past due but not impaired
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (i) Credit risk (cont’d)

  Cash and cash equivalents 

  Other receivables and deposits

  Inter-company loans and advances

  
 

  

  

  Financial guarantee
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (i) Credit risk (cont’d)

  Financial guarantee (cont’d)

  

  

 (ii) Interest rate risk 

  Exposure in interest rate risk

 Group

 RM  RM 

Floating rate instruments

Term loan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (ii) Interest rate risk (cont’d)

  Exposure in interest rate risk (cont’d)

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Fixed rate instruments

  Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

 RM  RM 

Group  

 (iii) Liquidity risk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (iii) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

  

  

 Carrying 
 amount

 Total 
 Contractual 

 On demand 
 or within 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Group 

Term loan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (iii) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

  

 Carrying 
 amount 

 Total 
 Contractual 

 On demand 
 or within 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Company

  * 
have not crystallised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (iv) Foreign currency risk 

  Exposure to foreign currency risk

 EURO  GBP  USD  SGD  HKD 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Group

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Trade receivables

Other receivables
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (iv) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

 USD  SGD 
 RM  RM 

Company

  Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

 RM  RM 

Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 

 (iv) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

  Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

 

 

 

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d

 Group  Company

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

 

 Group

 RM  RM 

Approved and contracted for:

Approved but not contracted for:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
cont’d

cont’d
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS 

Size of Shareholdings
No of 

Shareholders %
No of

Shares %

Total

 Direct  Indirect

No Name of Substantial Shareholders No of Shares % No of Shares %
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
cont’d

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS 

 Direct  Indirect

No Name of Substantial Shareholders No of Shares % No of Shares %

No Name of Shareholders No of Shares %

Yap Poh Onn
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No Name of Shareholders No of Shares %

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
cont’d
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DISTRIBUTION OF WARRANT HOLDINGS 

Size of Warrant Holdings

No of 
Warrant 
Holders

%
of Warrant 

Holders

No of 
Warrants

Unexercised

% of 
Unexercised 

Warrant

Total

No Name of Substantial Warrant Holders No of 
Warrants

%

Yap Poh Onn

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT HOLDINGS
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LIST OF WARRANT HELD BY DIRECTORS 

 Direct  Indirect

No Name of Directors No of 
Warrants

% No of 
Warrants

%

No Name of Warrant Holders No of 
Warrants 

Held

%

Yap Poh Onn

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT HOLDINGS
cont’d



185

No Name of Warrant Holders No of 
Warrants 

Held

%

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT HOLDINGS
cont’d
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT th AGM

RPV  or at 

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Please refer to 

SPECIAL BUSINESS
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the Act

Bursa Securities

Proposed Renewal of Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent 
Related Party Transactions (“RRPTs) of a Revenue or Trading Nature

the Act

Listing Requirements

Related Parties

RRPTs Mandate

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d
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Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate for RRPTs of a Revenue or 
Trading Nature

New RRPTs Mandate

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d
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BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Notes:-

 shall be regarded as 

Omnibus Account

 
 or email to  

AGM

 Please refer to the procedures as set out in the Administrative Guide for the electronic lodgement of proxy 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d
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Personal Data Privacy: 

th

th

th

th

Re-appointment of Auditor

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d



191

th

Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d
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Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
cont’d



193

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE
OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM

Date 

Time 

Online Meeting  TIIH online website at  provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing 
House Services Sdn Bhd (“Tricor”) in Malaysia

MODE OF MEETING

th

th

ENTITLEMENT TO PARTICIPATE AND VOTE 

 shall be eligible to 
th

th

REMOTE PARTICIPATION AND VOTING (“RPV”)

th

th
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM
cont’d

th

th

 
 

 
 OR email to 

POLL VOTING 

th

TH AGM

th

th

no later 

th

th
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM

cont’d

There will be no distribution th

PROCEDURES FOR RPV 

th

Procedure Action

TH AGM DAY

Register as a

Online Individual Holder

th 
 

th AGM on 

th

th

TH 
AGM
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM
cont’d

Procedure Action

TH AGM DAY 

th 

TH AGM 

th

th

Participate (LIVE STREAM MEETING) STRAITS 
TH AGM th

(e) Online Remote
Voting

th

TH 
AGM

GO TO REMOTE VOTING PAGE

participation th



198

Note to users of the RPV facilities:

TIIH Online

Procedure Action

i) Steps for individual Shareholders

 

Proceed with 
submission 

th AGM “Submission of 
Proxy Form”

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM

cont’d
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Procedure Action

ii) Steps for corporation or institutional shareholders

Create 
Account by Representative of Corporate Holder

before he/she can subscribe to this corporate holder electronic 

Proceed with
submission 

th

th 
AGM “Submission of Proxy Form”

th

th

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM
cont’d
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NO RECORDING OR PHOTOGRAPHY

ENQUIRY

 Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd

 

 

 

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 AGM

cont’d



STRAITS ENERGY RESOURCES BERHAD
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS STRAITS INTER LOGISTICS BERHAD) 

FIRST PROXY

Full Name of Proxy in capital letters Proportion of Shareholdings

%

and

SECOND PROXY

Full Name of Proxy in capital letters Proportion of Shareholdings

%

th AGM
Tricor

RPV
th

Resolution No RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

 

Dated this 

* Delete if not applicable

CDS Account No

Number of Share held



Record of Depositors as at 

Omnibus Account

 or email to  
before the time holding the AGM

Personal Data Privacy: 

STRAITS ENERGY RESOURCES BERHAD
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS STRAITS INTER LOGISTICS BERHAD)

C/O SHARE REGISTRAR

stamp

th




